
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE  
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
 

3rd FLOOR – CONFERENCE ROOM 
 

THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 19, 2013 
 

3:30 P.M. 
 

 WORKSHOP AGENDA 
 
 

1. Discuss, as may be needed, Regular Meeting agenda items for the meeting posted for 
Thursday, September 19, 2013. 
 

2. Discuss the Mobility 2035 Metropolitan Transportation Plan. 
 
3. Discuss letter of intent between the City of Temple, Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc., and 

Criterion Management Group, LLC, for redevelopment of the Hawn and Arcadia Theatre 
properties located at 114 and 110 East Central Avenue. 
 
Executive Session - Pursuant to Chapter 551, Government Code, §551.087, the City Council 
will enter into executive session at this time to discuss certain economic development 
prospects with representatives from the Temple Economic Development Corporation. 

 
Executive Session – Pursuant to §551.072 of the Open Meetings Act, the City Council will 
discuss in executive session the purchase of real property, the public discussion of which 
would have a detrimental effect on the position of the City in negotiations with a third party 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5:00 P.M. 
 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
 

2 NORTH MAIN STREET 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS – 2ND FLOOR 

TEMPLE, TX 
 

TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

1. Invocation  
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 
 
II. PROCLAMATIONS & SPECIAL RECOGNITIONS 
 
3. (A) Present Proclamation to Johnnie Reisner recognizing his many years of service with the 

 City of Temple. 
 
  

III. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

Citizens who desire to address the Council on any matter may sign up to do so prior to this meeting.  
Public comments will be received during this portion of the meeting.  Please limit comments to 3 
minutes.  No discussion or final action will be taken by the City Council.  
 
 

IV. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
All items listed under this section, Consent Agenda, are considered to be routine by the City Council 
and may be enacted by one motion.  If discussion is desired by the Council, any item may be 
removed from the Consent Agenda at the request of any Councilmember and will be considered 
separately. 
 
4. Consider adopting a resolution approving the Consent Agenda items and the appropriate 

resolutions for each of the following: 
 

Minutes 
  

(A)   August 29, 2013 Special Called Meeting 
      
 
 

 



Contracts, Leases, & Bids  
 
 
(B) 2013-7102-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple for the design of the 
Friar’s Creek Trail to Avenue R Trail located in the TMED area in the amount of 
$75,000. 

 
(C) 2013-7103-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 

agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP for designing, preparing 
specifications and developing construction estimates for Airport enhancement projects 
including fuel farm loop roadway, Airport terminal access, northwest Airport parking and 
entrance and Airport entry and landscaping at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas 
Regional Airport in the amount of $170,000.    

 
(D) 2013-7104-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services 

agreement with BSP Engineering Inc. of Temple for engineering services including 
design, surveying and construction administration required for Jefferson Manor 
waterline replacement (Alamo, Bowie, Crockett, Duval and Erath Loop) in an amount 
not to exceed $41,125. 

 
(E) 2013-7105-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Second Amendment to the 

Office Space Lease between the City of Temple and Morgan Stanley Smith Barney 
Financing, LLC for lease of space in the E. Rhodes and Leona B. Carpenter Foundation 
Building (the Temple Public Library). 

 
(F) 2013-7106-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the single-source purchase of 

Heil repair parts from Heil of Texas of Irving in the estimated amount of $100,000. 
 
(G) 2013-7107-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a yearly 2013-

2014 maintenance contract with Intergraph Public Safety in the amount of $41,136. 
 
(H) 2013-7108-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of jail services 

from Bell County Law Enforcement Center in the estimated amount of $74,500 for FY 
2014. 

 
(I) 2013-7109-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 50 metal 

refuse containers for the Solid Waste Division from Rolloffs USA., Durant, OK, through 
the H-GAC Contract in the amount of $40,170. 

 
(J) 2013-7110-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract for the 

base bid and bid alternate #1 with Alpha Constructors, of Temple for the construction of 
sidewalks on South 1st Street in the amount of $182,850.65. 

 
(K) 2013-7111-R: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an Interlocal Cooperation 

Contract with Texas State University for the acceptance of Tobacco Enforcement 
funding in the amount of $9,450 for the purposes of enforcing Subchapter H, Chapter 
161 of the Texas Health and Safety Code for fiscal year 2014. 

 
 
Ordinances – Second & Final Reading 
 



 
(L) 2013-4611: SECOND READING - Z-FY-13-26: Consider adopting an ordinance 

authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a freestanding personal wireless cell 
tower in an existing Commercial District, located on 0.02 ± acres out of Lot 2, Block 1, 
Glendale Park, Section VI at 2615 South 37th Street and Tract A, Block 3, Glendale 
Park Section III, at 2707 South 37th Street. 

 
 Misc.  
 
(M) 2013-7112-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of  the FY 14 

Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance 
Grant, in the amount of $100,000 (City match of $50,000), to help assist with lower cost 
airside and landside Airport improvements and maintenance items at the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   

 
(N) 2013-7113-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the renewal of the Emergency 

Management Performance Grant for FY 2013, which funds a portion of the 
administration cost for Emergency Management for the City of Temple in the amount of 
$38,119.48.  

 
(O) 2013-7114-R: Consider adopting a resolution designating the Temple Daily Telegram as 

the official newspaper for the City for fiscal year 2013-2014, in accordance with Section 
4.20 of the Charter of the City of Temple. 

 
 (P) 2013-7115-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing payment of the annual invoice 

from Brazos River Authority in the amount of $91,494.23 which covers operation and 
maintenance costs associated with the City’s portion of raw water storage in Lake 
Belton and costs associated with repair work on the Belton Dam which was recently 
completed by the Corps of Engineers. 
 

 (Q) 2013-7116-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal 
year 2012-2013. 

 
 
 

V. REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORDINANCES 
 
 
5. 2013-4606: THIRD AND FINAL READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a five year franchise with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., to provide 
non-emergency ambulance transfer services within the City.  

 
6. 2013-4607: THIRD AND FINAL READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an 

ordinance authorizing a five year franchise with Scott & White EMS, Inc., to provide non-
emergency ambulance transfer services within the City. 

 
 
 
 



 
7. 2013-4612: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 

establishing certification pay in the amount of $150 per month for the certification of Master 
Peace officer in the Police Department. 
 

8. 2013-4613: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-13-30: Consider adopting an 
Ordinance authorizing a zone change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District 
(GR) on 21.59 ± acres, part of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, 
located on the west side of Old Waco Road and the east side of South Pea Ridge Road, east 
of Westwood Estates. 

 
 
RESOLUTIONS 
 
9. 2013-7117-R: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a letter of intent between the City of 

Temple, Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc., and Criterion Management Group, LLC, for 
redevelopment of the Hawn and Arcadia Theatre properties located at 114 and 110 East 
Central Avenue. 

 
 
 
 

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any items in executive (closed) session 
whenever permitted by the Texas Open Meetings Act. 

 
I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of this Notice of Meeting was posted in a public place at 
3:00 PM, on September 13, 2013. 
 
 
______________________ 
Lacy Borgeson, TRMC 
City Secretary 
 
 
 
I certify that this Notice of Meeting Agenda was removed by me from the outside bulletin board in front of the City Municipal Building at _________on the 
 
________________ day of __________ 2013. ______________. 

 
 

 
  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #3(A) 
Regular Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Daniel A. Dunn, Mayor 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Presentation of Proclamation: 
 
 (A) Present Proclamation to Johnnie Reisner recognizing his many years of service with the 

 City of Temple. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Present proclamation as presented in item descriptions. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This proclamation was requested by, Nicole Torralva, Director of Public Works, 
and will be presented to Johnnie Reisner. 
 
 
  
FISCAL IMPACT:  None 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  None  
  



 
 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

09/19/13 
Item #4(A) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary   
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Approve Minutes: 
 

(A)  August 29, 2013 Special Called Meeting 
    

 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approve minutes as presented in item description. 
 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Copies of minutes are enclosed for Council review. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
August 29, 2013 Special Called Meeting 
 
  



SPECIAL MEETING OF THE TEMPLE CITY COUNCIL  
  

AUGUST 29, 2013  
 
 
The City Council of the City of Temple, Texas conducted a Special Meeting on 
Thursday, August 29, 2013, at 8:30 AM in the Council Chambers, Municipal 
Building, 2 North Main Street.  
 
Present:  

 

 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales voiced the Invocation.  
 

 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager, led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

 

 
(A) Ratifying the property tax increase reflected in the budget - 
"This budget will raise more total property taxes than last year’s 
budget by $1,258,667 (6.44%) and of that amount, $531,737 is tax 
revenue to be raised from new property added to the tax roll this 
year;" and  
 
(B) Adopting the City’s budget for fiscal year beginning October 
1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2014, including the Operating 
Budget for 2013-2014, Capital Improvement Plan, General 
Government Pay Plan, and Fiscal & Investment Policies.  
 
David Blackburn, City Manager introduced the items to Council. He 
noted there were six items on the agenda related to the adoption of 
the operating budget to include the capital improvement plan; general 

Councilmember Perry Cloud  
Councilmember Timothy Davis  
Councilmember Russell Schneider 
Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales  
Mayor Daniel A. Dunn  

I. CALL TO ORDER

1. Invocation 

2. Pledge of Allegiance

II. BUDGET ITEMS

3. 2013-7033-R: PUBLIC HEARING - Conduct a public hearing
regarding the City’s budget for fiscal year beginning October 1,
2013 and ending September 30, 2014 and consider adopting a
resolution:  

Page 1 of 6Special Meeting

9/3/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=521&doc_id=a9b66d26-6...



government pay plan; and Public Services Agencies.  Mr. Blackburn 
also noted the PSA were pulled out for voting purposes.  He also 
stated related to item 3(A), this is a property tax revenue increase, not 
property tax rate increase. Mr. Blackburn also highlighted that the 
overall revenues for FY14 are projected to increase 3.40% from 
FY13; and the overall expenses are projected to increase 2.94% from 
FY13. 
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance, presented all other items related to 
the adoption of the budget to Council.  
 
Item 4 - Property Tax Roll: this will adopt the ad valorem property tax 
roll certified by the Tax Appraisal District of Bell County, in the amount 
of $3,742,350,334 (total FY14 taxable value).  This is comprised of 
three components, the City of Temple; Frozen Taxables; and Tax 
Increment District. 
 
Item 5 - Property Tax Rate: The proposed property tax rate for FY14 
is 58.64 cents per $100,000 valuation.  The tax rate is comprised of 
two components, the M&0 (Maintenance and Operation) at 33.24 
cents; and the I&S (Debt) at 25.40 cents. 
 
Item 6 - Solid Waste Residential Rates: There will be a 40 
cent increase from $15.80 to $16.20 per month.  This increase will 
cover the start up and incremental annual cost associated with the 
implementation of the City-wide residential curbside recycling 
program.  
 
Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing open with regard to Agend 
item 3 and asked if anyone wished to addess this item.  There being 
none, Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing closed.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Russell Schneider Item (A) I move that the 
property tax increase reflected in the budget be approved - "This 
budget will raise more total property taxes than last year's budget by 
$1,258,667 (6.44%) and of that amount, $531,737 is tax revenue to 
be raised from new property added to the tax roll this year." 
 seconded by Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 

 
 
Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud Item (B) I move that the budget for fiscal 
year beginning October 1, 2013 and ending September 30, 2014, including the 
Operating Budget for 2013-2014, Capital Improvement Program, General 
Government Pay Plan, Fiscal and Budgetary Policy, and Investment Policy be 
adopted".  seconded by Councilmember Timothy Davis. 
 

Page 2 of 6Special Meeting

9/3/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=521&doc_id=a9b66d26-6...



Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 
Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing open with regard to Agend item 4 
and asked if anyone wished to addess this item.  There being none, Mayor 
Dunn declared the Public Hearing closed.  
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales adopt Ordinance as presented in 
item description, on first and final reading.  seconded by Councilmember 
Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 
Mayor Dunn declared the Public Hearing open with regard to Agend item 5 
and asked if anyone wished to addess this item.  There being none, Mayor 
Dunn declared the Public Hearing closed.  
 
Motion by Councilmember Timothy Davis (A) "I move that the property tax 
rate be increased by the adoption of a tax rate of $0.5864 per $100 
valuation, which is effectively a 4.66 percent increase in the tax rate." 
 seconded by Councilmember Russell Schneider. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 
Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales (B) "I move that the ordinance 
setting the 2013-2014 tax rate in the amount of $0.5864 per $100 valuation 
comprised of $0.3324 for maintenance and operations and $0.2540 for debt 
service be adopted."  seconded by Councilmember Perry Cloud. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 

4. 2013-4609: FIRST & FINAL READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Consider
adopting an ordinance approving the tax roll and authorizing
calculation of the amount of tax that can be determined for all real and
personal property in the City for the tax year 2013 (fiscal year 2014), to
be considered on an emergency basis. 

5. 2013-4610 FIRST & FINAL READING - PUBLIC HEARING - Consider
adopting an ordinance levying taxes and setting a tax rate for the City
for the tax year 2013, making the appropriation for the regular
operation of the City, to be considered on an emergency basis.  

6. 2013-7034-R: Consider adopting a resolution setting the collection
charges for residential solid waste services. 

Page 3 of 6Special Meeting

9/3/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=521&doc_id=a9b66d26-6...



Councilmember Schneider clarified that the 40 cents would cover the cost 
over a 10-year period.  
 
Ms. Barnard confirmed; and also replenishes replacement. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Timothy Davis adopt Resolution.  seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales. 
 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
 

 
Motion by Councilmember Perry Cloud adopt Resolution.  seconded by 
Councilmember Russell Schneider. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Judy Morales abstained. The other Councilmembers voted 
aye.  The motion passed. 
 
 

 

 
Mayor Dunn presented the Proclamation to Miranda.   
 
Mr. Blackburn presented her Certificate of Retirement and expressed 
comments of appreciation for her dedication.  
 

 

 
David Blackburn, City Manager, presented this item to Council. He 
reviewed the background related to this area. Mr. Blackburn stated 
the primary objective to the Downtown Rail Safety Zone was to 
increase the safety of the Rail Road Crossings in Downtown Temple. 
Multiple entities have worked on this initiative.  
 
Mr. Blackburn stated there are three areas and crossings that are 
addressed in this report, the crossing at 1st Street; Main Street; and 
MLK.  He then reviewed the timeline of events since October 26, 
2011, to current date.  In October 2012, BNSF had not submitted a 
cost estimate for 1st Street closure; but construction was estimated to 
be in the amount of $450,000.  In June 2013, BNSF submitted a 

7. 2013-7035-R: Consider adopting a resolution approving the funding
recommendations for public service agencies for the 2013-2014 fiscal
year.  

III. SPECIAL RECOGNITION

8. Present Proclamation to Miranda Drake, Senior Accountant
recognizing 20 years of service with the City of Temple.  

IV. DISCUSSION ITEM

9. Receive update and discuss Downtown Rail Safety Zones.

Page 4 of 6Special Meeting

9/3/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=521&doc_id=a9b66d26-6...



revised estimate to close 1st Street in the amount of $814,215 + the 
construction cost of $450,000.  On August 9, 2013, BNSF again, 
resubmitted a revised cost estimate for the closure of 1st Street in the 
amount of $433,236 + construction cost of $450,000; this also 
required the closure to take place by August 16th.  Mr. Blackburn 
stated he was granted an extension until this meeting so that Council 
could have a collective dialogue.  
 
Mr. Blackburn mentioned that the RZ leadership has indicated they 
continue to support the project and can identify funding to cover the 
increased cost.  He also noted that the RZ Leadership also believes 
this project is critical for the downtown redevelopment efforts.  Mr. 
Blackburn stated it is his recommendation to move forward with this 
project. 
 
Mr. David Patrick, KPA was available for questions.  
 
Councilmember Schneider stated it is unfortunate that there are 
increases to the cost, but this project is important for the future of 
downtown.  This is our window of opportunity and we need to move 
forward. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Morales, also commented that this is critical for the 
safety, growth, and Economic Development for downtown and we 
need to continue our path. 
 
Mayor Dunn, stated he continues to be opposed to this project as the 
Rail Road is part of Temple's history; and the cost associated with this 
project has only increased.  
 
Councilmember Cloud agreed to the need to move forward with this 
project.  He confirmed the additional cost will come from the RZ 
budget. 
 
Mr. Blackburn confirmed yes. 
 
Councilmember Davis stated that downtown is at a tipping point and 
this this put downtown at an advantage for growth and economic 
development.  
 

There being no futher business, Mayor Dunn adjourned the meeting of the 
Temple City Council. 
 

 
________________________ 
 
William A. Jones, III, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Page 5 of 6Special Meeting

9/3/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=521&doc_id=a9b66d26-6...



                                               

  

 
____________________
 
Lacy Borgeson  
City Secretary  

 

Page 6 of 6Special Meeting

9/3/2013http://temple.granicus.com/MinutesViewer.php?print=1&clip_id=521&doc_id=a9b66d26-6...



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(B) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Ken Cicora, Director of Parks and Leisure Services 
  
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP of Temple for the design of the Friar’s Creek Trail to Avenue 
R Trail located in the TMED area in the amount of $75,000. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: This agreement is for the design services, bidding services, construction 
administration and on-site representation of the project to extend the Friars Creek Trail from the 
termination of the existing Friar’s Creek Trail at Scott & White Boulevard north to Avenue R.   The 
project, when constructed, will consist of a 12’ wide concrete trail, landscaping, irrigation and lighting.   
The project is part of the T-MED infrastructure improvements planned and funded by the 
Reinvestment Zone No. 1.    
 
The intent is to include this project with the bid for the Avenue R reconstruction project to achieve an 
economy of scale and be able to save on project costs.   The design phase for the project will be 
completed in 60 days from the notice to proceed. 
 
All improvements will be in Scott & White property and therefore an easement will be required for 
construction of the project. 
 
The Reinvestment Zone Board approved the recommendation of the contract with KPA at its meeting 
on August 28, 2013. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $500,000 for the Friar’s Creek Trail to Avenue R Trail 
project was approved by the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board on May 29, 2013, as part of the 
updated Master Plan projects.  Funding in the amount of $75,000 has been budgeted to fund the 
professional services agreement.  It is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing Plan, 
account 795-9800-531-6876, project 101015. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Resolution 



RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, L.P., OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REQUIRED FOR DESIGN OF THE 
FRIAR’S CREEK TRAIL TO AVENUE R TRAIL LOCATED IN THE 
TEMPLE MEDICAL EDUCTION DISTRICT (TMED), IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$75,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, as part of the TMED infrastructure improvements planned and funded by the 
Reinvestment Zone No. 1, the project to extend the Friar’s Creek Trail from the termination of 
the existing Friar’s Creek Trail at Scott & White Boulevard north to Avenue R, will consist of a 
12’ wide concrete trail, landscaping, irrigation and lighting; 
 
 Whereas, on August 28, 2013, the Board recommended City Council approve a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, L.P., of Temple, Texas, for 
design of the Friar’s Creek Trail in the amount of $75,000; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this project is available in the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Financing 
Plan, Account No. 795-9800-531-6876, Project No. 101015; and 

 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, L.P., after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for design of the Friar’s Creek Trail to Avenue R Trail located in the 
Temple Medical Education District (TMED), in the amount of $75,000. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(C) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
 

DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 

 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, LP for designing, preparing specifications and developing 
construction estimates for Airport enhancement projects including fuel farm loop roadway, Airport 
terminal access, northwest Airport parking and entrance and Airport entry and landscaping at the 
Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport in the amount of $170,000.    
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On May 29, 2013, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved $1,320,000 for 
design and construction to continue much needed improvements at the Airport as part of the updated 
Master Plan projects.  During the Reinvestment Zone No 1 Board meeting August 28, 2013, the Zone 
Board recommended the City Council approve the professional services agreement with KPA in the 
amount of $170,000.   
 
The scope of services provided by KPA includes: 
 
 Design    $  95,700 
 Bidding    $  10,000 
 Construction Administration $  29,900 
 On Site Representation  $  34,400 
      $170,000 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:   Funding in the amount of $1,320,000 is designated for this project in the current 
adopted Reinvestment Zone #1 Project Plan and Financing Plan. Detail of the allocation of the design 
funding is shown below. 
 
 
 
 



09/19/13 
Item #4(C) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

Project Account # Project # Amount 

Fuel Farm Loop Roadway 795-9800-531-6877 101016 $10,000

Airport Terminal Access Enhancement 795-9800-531-6878 101017 $15,000

Airport Entry Landscaping & Signage 795-9800-531-6879 101018 $30,000

Northwest Airport Parking & Entrance 795-9800-531-6880 101019 $115,000

Total Design Funding   $170,000 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal 
Resolution  
 
  



















1 
 

RESOLUTION NO.    
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH KASBERG, PATRICK & ASSOCIATES, L.P., OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REQUIRED FOR THE DESIGN, 
PREPARATION OF SPECIFICATIONS AND DEVELOPMENT OF 
CONSTRUCTION ESTIMATES FOR AIRPORT ENHANCEMENT 
PROJECTS AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS REGIONAL 
AIRPORT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $170,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, on May 29, 2013, the Reinvestment Zone No. 1 Board approved $1,320,000 
for design and construction to continue much needed improvements at the Draughon-Miller 
Central Texas Regional Airport, as part of the updated Master Plan projects;  
 
 Whereas, on August 28, 2013, the Board recommended City Council approve a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, L.P., of Temple, Texas, for 
the design, preparation of specifications and development of construction estimates for airport 
enhancements projects, in the amount of $170,000; 
 
 Whereas, funding for this project is available in the current adopted Reinvestment Zone 
No. 1 Project Plan in Account No. 795-9800-531-6877, Project No. 101016, Account No. 795-
9800-531-6878, Project No. 101017, Account No. 795-9800-531-6879, Project No. 101018, and 
Account No. 795-9800-531-6880, Project No. 101019; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with Kasberg, Patrick & Associates, L.P., after approval as to 
form by the City Attorney, for the design, preparation of specifications and development of 
construction estimates for the airport enhancement projects at the Draughon-Miller Central 
Texas Regional Airport, in the amount of $170,000. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



2 
 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(D) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva P.E., Public Works Director 
Thomas Brown, Utility Services Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a professional services agreement 
with BSP Engineering Inc. of Temple for engineering services including design, surveying and 
construction administration required for Jefferson Manor waterline replacement (Alamo, Bowie, 
Crockett, Duval and Erath Loop) in an amount not to exceed $41,125. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt a resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  For several years the Public Works Utility Services Division has experienced 
numerous operational waterline issues in the area of Alamo, Bowie, Crockett, Duval Courts and Erath 
Drive (also known as Jefferson Manor addition).  This area contains numerous under sized cast iron 
lines with lead poured joints (less than 6” in size) and an absence of valves, providing minimal fire 
protection to the area. The project will provide larger distribution lines and installation of valves and 
hydrants, substantially upgrading water service and fire protection in the area.  
 
Identified in the water distribution operation and maintenance budget, this project will result in 
replacing nearly 2,500 feet of 2” waterline with a new 6” waterline.  As identified in the attached letter 
the proposed timeline for design of the project is approximately 84 days.  Engineering services are 
broken down as follows: 
 
 Basic Services 
  Design Topography Survey     $   4,600.00 
  Parcel/Owner Identification and address    $      350.00    
  Preparation of Construction Documents (50% Complete) $   9,886.00 
  Preparation of Construction Documents (100% Complete) $   5,889.00 
  Contract Bidding Phase      $   2,500.00  
  Project Representation      $   1,200.00 
  Construction Surveying      $   6,900.00 
  Inspection Services       $   9,800.00 
     
                                                Total  Services $41,125.00 



 
 
 

09/19/13 
Item #4(D) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
The engineer’s opinion of probable cost for construction of this project is approximately $250,000. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $500,000 is available in account 520-5200-535-6357 
project #100909 for this project. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Proposal  
Project Map 
Resolution  
 
  



15 West Central Avenue 
Temple, Texas  76501 
Phone: 254.774.9611 
Fax:     254.774.9676 

www.beachengineers.com 
 

 
 
 

 

 

© Copyright 2013 BSP Engineers, Inc.  All rights reserved. 

 

August 27, 2013 
 
City of Temple 
Department of Public Works 
Ms. Nicole Torralva, PE 
Public Works Director 
3210 E. Ave. H, Bldg. A, Ste 130 
Temple, TX  76501  
 
 
RE:  City of Temple, Jefferson Manor Water Main Replacement 
 Includes  Alamo, Bowie, Crockett, Duval, and Erath Loop. 
  
 
Dear Ms. Torralva,  
 
As per your request, we have prepared our professional services fee proposal for 
Engineering Services required for the above referenced project.  Scope of work to 
conform to the attached Proposed Water Main Extension layout and Preliminary 
Opinion of Probable Cost:  

BASIC SERVICES:  

The BASIC SERVICES shall include Professional Engineering and Survey Topography 
Surveys, as required to prepare the design and construction drawings, and all other 
information as required to supplement project Bid manual.   
 

We propose to complete all services for a lump sum Professional Fee of 

 $ 41,125.00.  The fee is divided as follows: These amounts shall be invoiced 
monthly based upon the percent complete through invoice date. 

Design Topography Survey       $ 4,600.00 
Parcel / Owner Identification and address     $    350.00 
Preparation of Construction Documents (50% Complete)   $ 9,886.00 
Preparation of Construction Documents (100% Complete)   $ 5,889.00  
Contract Bidding Phase        $ 2,500.00 
 
 



City of Temple, Jefferson Manor Water Main Replacement  Page 2 of 3 
 

BASIC SERVICES: CONTINUED 

Project Representation        $ 1,200.00 
• Pre-construction Meeting  
• Additional (3) Meetings as required for project coordination 
• Pay request Review and Certification 
• Preparation of no design Change Orders 
• Final Walk-through 
 

Construction Surveying        $ 6,900.00 
• Calculation and Preparation of all Construction Layout points 
• Provide a one-time construction stake-out of water main 
• Preparation of Cut Sheets 

 
 Inspection Services        $ 9,800.00 

• Daily Inspections (Estimated at 2 hours per day x 90 days) 
• Weekly Construction Reports 
• Photos taken during the Construction Process 
• Pay Request Review and Quantity Verification 
• Construction Progress Meetings with Contractor as required  

 
 
PROJECT DELIVERABLES: 

• (2) Contract Drawings - 50% Complete Review Sets 11x17 
• (25) – 100% Complete hardcopy sets 11x17 Construction Drawings 
• (1) Mylar set 11x17 
• Opinion of Probable Cost 
• Bid Exhibit including itemized Bid Items 
• Bid Tabulation including review and Contractor recommendation 
• Record Drawings prepared on Mylar and electronic files on CD 

 
PROJECT SCHEDULE:       Time Required    
 
Design Topography Survey    14 Cal Days 
Preparation of Documents (50% Complete)  30 Cal Days 
Preparation of Documents (100% Complete)  40 Cal Days 
Contract Bidding Phase     30 Cal Days  
Construction Phase      120 Cal Days 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES:  
The following are estimated ADDITIONAL SERVICES associated with the above 
referenced BASIC SERVICES:  
 
Easement Preparation (None Anticipated)  $ Hourly 
 
 
 



 City of Temple, Jefferson Manor Water Main Replacement  Page 3 of 3 
  
 
After you have had the opportunity to review this proposal, we would be pleased to 
meet with you to discuss the specifics of the outlined services and fees. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
Anthony D. Beach, P.E.  
BSP Engineers, Inc. 
F-7587 
www.bspengineers.com 
 

 

http://www.bspengineers.com/�




PRELIMINARY OPINION OF PROBABLE COST

City of Temple, Texas
Jefferson Manor Water Distribution Replacement
Located in Temple, Texas includes Alamo, Bowie, Crockett, Duval, and Erath Loop
Filename: 1895 Opinion of Probable Cost.xls Date: 

Item Description Unit Unit Cost Quantity Total

1 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits and Insurance LS $5,000.00 1 $5,000.00
2 Preparation of R.O.W. and Site Clearing STA $50.00 24 $1,200.00
3 6" PVC Class 150 C900 Water Main LF $31.00 2,485 $77,035.00
4 Roadway / Pavement Repair 3' Wide SY $15.00 900 $13,500.00
5 Standard Fire Hydrant Assembly EA $3,800.00 5 $19,000.00
6 8" MJ Gate Valve EA $1,900.00 3 $5,700.00
7 6" MJ Gate Valve EA $1,400.00 6 $8,400.00
8 Connect to Existing City of Temple Water Main EA $1,500.00 6 $9,000.00
9 1" Water Service EA $1,250.00 60 $75,000.00
10 Existing Driveway / Sidewalk Repair SF $11.00 400 $4,400.00
11 Grass Sod Replacement SF $2.00 1,500 $3,000.00
12 Erosion Control and SWPPP Implementation LS $850.00 1 $850.00
13 Testing per City of Temple and TCEQ LS $3,200.00 1 $3,200.00

CONSTRUCTION TOTAL: $225,285.00
10% CONSTRUCTION CONTINGENCY: $22,528.50

SUB TOTAL: $247,813.50

$19,825.08
$0.00
$4,600.00
$6,900.00

PROJECT REPRESENTATION / INSPECTION: $9,800.00
BSP Contract Amount: $41,125.08

$288,938.58

August 28, 2013

SURVEYING PROPERTY: 
SURVEYING DESIGN: 

PROJECT BUDGET: 

ENGINEERING: 

SURVEYING CONSTRUCTION: 



RESOLUTION NO. ________________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
WITH BSP ENGINEERING, INC., OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR 
ENGINEERING SERVICES INCLUDING THE DESIGN, SURVEYING AND 
CONSTRUCTION ADMINISTRATION REQUIRED FOR JEFFERSON 
MANOR WATERLINE REPLACEMENT, IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $41,125; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, for several years, the Public Works Utility Services Division has experienced 
numerous operational waterline issues in the area of Alamo, Bowie, Crockett, Duval Courts and 
Erath Drive (also known as Jefferson Manor addition); 
 
 Whereas, this area contains numerous under sized cast iron lines with lead poured joints 
(less than 6” in size) and an absence of valves, providing minimal fire protection to that area – 
this project will provide larger distribution lines and installation of valves and hydrants, 
substantially upgrading water services and fire protection in the area; 
 
 Whereas, staff recommends Council approve a professional services agreement with 
BSP Engineering, Inc., of Temple, Texas, for engineering services required for Jefferson Manor 
waterline replacement in an amount not to exceed $41,125; 
 
 Whereas, funding is available for this project in Account No. 520-5200-535-6357, 
Project No. 100909; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
professional services agreement with BSP Engineering, Inc., of Temple, Texas, after approval as 
to form by the City Attorney, for engineering services including design, surveying and 
construction administration required for Jefferson Manor waterline replacement (Alamo, Bowie, 
Crocket, Duval and Erath Loop), in an amount not to exceed $41,125. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 18th day of September, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(E) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a Second Amendment to the Office 
Space Lease between the City of Temple and Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Financing, LLC for lease 
of space in the E. Rhodes and Leona B. Carpenter Foundation Building (the Temple Public Library). 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Morgan Stanley currently rents 3,243 square feet of office space in the Temple 
Public Library. The current lease term is 3 years and will expire on October 31, 2013. Morgan Stanley 
has requested to renew the lease for another 3 year term. This will be the second amendment to the 
original Office Space Lease between Morgan Stanley and the City which was signed in 2007.  
 
As part of the Second Amendment, Morgan Stanley also has the option to extend the lease for 3 
consecutive 3 year periods upon mutual agreement of the parties.  
 
In year one of the new lease term, Morgan Stanley will pay annual rent of $13.00/square foot 
($3,513.25 monthly). In year two, Morgan Stanley will pay annual rent of $13.25/square foot 
($3,580.81 monthly) and in year three, Morgan Stanley will pay annual  rent of $13.50/square foot 
($3,648.38 monthly).  
 
Pursuant to the Second Amendment, the City agrees to pay a commission to Morgan Stanley’s 
broker in the amount of $3,867.28 which represents 3% of the first year’s annual rental payment due 
to the City. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The City will receive annual rent in year one of $42,159, in year two $42,969.72, 
and in year three $43,780.56.  The rent will be deposited into account 110-0000-461-0937.  
 
A budget adjustment is recommended for Councils’ approval appropriating $3,868 to account 110-
4000-555-2616 for the 3% commission fee due to Morgan Stanley’s broker.  The funding for the 
commission fee will be funded from Library Building rental revenue account 110-0000-461-0937. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 





1 
 

 RESOLUTION NO.     
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE OFFICE 
SPACE LEASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF TEMPLE AND MORGAN 
STANLEY SMITH BARNEY FINANCING, LLC, FOR LEASE OF SPACE IN 
THE E. RHODES AND LEONA B. CARPENTER FOUNDATION BUILDING 
(TEMPLE PUBLIC LIBRARY); AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 

Whereas, the City currently owns and leases offices in the E. Rhodes and Leona B. 
Carpenter Foundation Building (the Temple Public Library); 
 
 Whereas, Morgan Stanley Smith Barney Financing, LLC currently rents 3,243 square 
feet of office space in the Temple Public Library – the current lease term is for three years and 
expires on October 31, 2013; 
 
 Whereas, Morgan Stanley has requested to renew the lease for another three year term – 
this will be the second amendment to the original Office Space Lease between Morgan Stanley 
and the City of Temple which was signed in 2007 - as part of the Second Amendment, Morgan 
Stanley also has the option to extend the lease for three consecutive three year periods, upon 
mutual agreement of the parties; 
 

Whereas, the City will receive annual rent in year one of $42,159, in year two, 
$42,969.72, and in year three, $43,780.56 –  these funds will be deposited into Account No. 110-
000-461-0937; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute the 
Second Amendment to the Office Space Lease between the City and Morgan Stanley Smith 
Barney Financing, LLC for 3,243 square feet of office space in the E. Rhodes and Leona B. 
Carpenter Foundation Building which extends the lease term for three years and allows for three 
consecutive three year lease extensions, as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. 

 
Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 



2 
 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(F) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, PE, Director of Public Works 
Belinda Mattke, Director of Purchasing 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:   Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the single-source purchase of Heil 
repair parts from Heil of Texas of Irving in the estimated amount of $100,000. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The Solid Waste Department utilizes approximately 20 Heil bodies in its fleet of 
refuse trucks.  The Solid Waste Department has found the Heil units to be durable and to operate 
efficiently.  However, with any mechanized loaders, components wear out and the units have to be 
maintained with new parts.  The City currently has a few Heil bodies that are 8 years old, with a few 
trucks being retired this fall upon the activation of new CNG-fueled units.     
 
The City has spent approximately $47,000 thus far in FY 2013 for Heil replacement and repair parts 
with a pending purchase of approximately $24,000 for a new lift and carriage that is needed for a 
commercial sideloader truck.  With the activation of the new CNG fleet in FY 2014, staff expects the 
purchase of Heil replacement parts to be reduced, but new component parts will always be needed to 
keep the entire Solid Waste fleet in operation.    
 
Heil only distributes its parts through full service dealers, and as such, the procurement of Heil parts 
is a single-source purchase as defined with the Local Government Code §252.022.    
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Repair parts for Heil refuse trucks are purchased on an as needed basis by the 
Fleet Services department on behalf of the Solid Waste Department.  The Solid Waste Department 
has budgeted for fleet repairs in several of its divisions in account 2333.  Estimated repair part 
expenditures for FY 2013 and FY 2014 based on historical purchases: $100,000. 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution  
  



 1

 
RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SINGLE SOURCE PURCHASE OF HEIL 
REPAIR PARTS FROM HEIL OF TEXAS, OF IRVING, TEXAS, IN THE 
ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $100,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Solid Waste Department utilizes approximately 20 Heil bodies in its 
fleet of refuse trucks and has found that the Heil units are durable and operate efficiently; 
 
 Whereas, however, with mechanized loaders, components wear out and the units 
have to be maintained with new parts – the City currently has a few Heil bodies that are 8 
years old and a few that are to be retired this fall, with the activation of the new CNG-fueled 
units;  
 
 Whereas, Heil only distributes its parts through full service dealers, and as such, the 
procurement of Heil parts is a single source purchase as defined by the Local Government 
Code §252.022; 
 
 Whereas, repair parts for the Heil refuse trucks are purchased on an ‘as needed’ basis 
by the Fleet Services Department and the Solid Waste Department has budgeted for these 
fleet repairs in their adopted fiscal year 2013-2014 budget; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the single source purchase of Heil repair parts 
from Heil of Texas, of Irving, Texas, in the estimated amount of $100,000 for the Solid 
Waste Department. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, which may be necessary for these 
purchases. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 2

 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(G) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Brandon Harris, Information Technology Director 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of a yearly 2013-2014 
maintenance contract with Intergraph Public Safety in the amount of $41,136. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The Police and Fire Departments currently use Records Management Software 
from Intergraph Public Safety for the following public safety applications in helping the City to conduct 
management of Public Safety records and analysis: 
 

SunPro Fire RMS      

I-LEADS RMS (Arrests, warrants, citations, evidence, calls for service, etc…)   

CAD Interface Software    

Oracle Software     

 

Intergraph Public Safety is the sole provider of maintenance for Intergraph Public Safety application 
software. This is currently the 14th year of support for the current software. 

 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The Information Technology Department currently has funds budgeted in account 
110-1952-519-23-38 in the amount of $41,136 for continued annual support of these applications.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
  



 
RESOLUTION NO. ______________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF AN ANNUAL 
MAINTENANCE CONTRACT WITH INTERGRAPH PUBLIC SAFETY, 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $41,136; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

_________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, the police and fire departments currently use Records Management 
Software from Intergraph Public Safety for certain public safety applications in helping the 
City conduct management of Public Safety Records and analysis; 
 
 Whereas, Intergraph Public Safety is the sole provider of maintenance for 
Intergraph Public Safety application software - Staff recommends purchasing an annual 
maintenance contract for a cost not to exceed $41,136; 
 
 Whereas, this will be the City’s 14th year of support for the current software – funds 
are budgeted in Account No. 110-1925-519-2338 for this purchase; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the purchase of an annual maintenance contract 
with Intergraph Public Safety for Public Safety Software Applications, for an amount not to 
exceed $41,136. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for 
this annual purchase. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 



 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 

 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(H) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Gary O. Smith, Chief of Police 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of jail services from 
Bell County Law Enforcement Center in the estimated amount of $74,500 for FY 2014. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Resolution number 2012-6820-R allows the City of Temple to utilize the services 
of Bell County to house inmates instead of maintaining an in-house jail operation.  The Bell County 
Law Enforcement Center has trained staff in place and space available to fulfill the City’s needs.  The 
City has been pleased with the services provided by Bell County and staff recommends the continued 
purchase of jail services. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $74,500 is designated for jail housing in FY 2014 budget 
in account 110-2011-521-2623. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
 
 

  



RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE CONTINUED PURCHASE 
OF JAIL SERVICES FROM BELL COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT 
CENTER, FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014, IN THE ESTIMATED 
ANNUAL AMOUNT OF $74,500; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the City of Temple has utilized the services of Bell County to house 
inmates for several years instead of maintaining an in-house jail operation; 
 

Whereas, the Bell County Law Enforcement Center has trained staff in place and 
space available to fulfill the City’s needs; 
 

Whereas, the City has been pleased with the services provided by Bell County and 
staff recommends the continued purchase of jail services, for fiscal year 2013-2014, in the 
estimated annual amount of $74,500; 
 

Whereas, funds are available in Account No. 110-2011-521-2623 for this purchase; 
and   
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the continued purchase of jail services from Bell 
County Law Enforcement Center, for fiscal year 2013-2014, in the estimated annual amount 
of $74,500. 
 
 Part 2:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute 
any documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, that may be necessary for this 
purchase. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(I) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, Public Works Director 
Lisa Sebek, Solid Waste Services Director 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the purchase of 50 metal refuse 
containers for the Solid Waste Division from Rolloffs USA., Durant, OK, through the H-GAC Contract 
in the amount of $40,170. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 

ITEM SUMMARY: Replacement containers are needed in the sideload and frontload metal 
collections systems.  This purchase provides for 40 - 8 yard front load containers, 10 - 3 yard sideload 
containers. 

Current pricing on the H-GAC bid contract has been confirmed by Purchasing. The city has done 
business with Rolloffs USA, and finds them to be a responsible vendor. Utilizing this contract through 
the H-GAC satisfies the requirement for competitive bids. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding has been appropriated in the account listed below. 
 

Description 
 

Account # 
 

Budget 
Proposed 

Expenditure 
Sideload Metal 

Containers 
110-2360-540-22-11 $4,800 $4,400 

Frontload Metal 
Containers 

110-2350-540-22-11 $42,500 $35,770 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 
 
 



 1

 
RESOLUTION NO. _____________________ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE SINGLE SOURCE PURCHASE OF HEIL 
REPAIR PARTS FROM HEIL OF TEXAS, OF IRVING, TEXAS, IN THE 
ESTIMATED AMOUNT OF $100,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Solid Waste Department utilizes approximately 20 Heil bodies in its 
fleet of refuse trucks and has found that the Heil units are durable and operate efficiently; 
 
 Whereas, however, with mechanized loaders, components wear out and the units 
have to be maintained with new parts – the City currently has a few Heil bodies that are 8 
years old and a few that are to be retired this fall, with the activation of the new CNG-fueled 
units;  
 
 Whereas, Heil only distributes its parts through full service dealers, and as such, the 
procurement of Heil parts is a single source purchase as defined by the Local Government 
Code §252.022; 
 
 Whereas, repair parts for the Heil refuse trucks are purchased on an ‘as needed’ basis 
by the Fleet Services Department and the Solid Waste Department has budgeted for these 
fleet repairs in their adopted fiscal year 2013-2014 budget; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public 
interest to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the single source purchase of Heil repair parts 
from Heil of Texas, of Irving, Texas, in the estimated amount of $100,000 for the Solid 
Waste Department. 
 
 Part 2: The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute any 
documents, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, which may be necessary for these 
purchases. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 



 2

 
 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(J) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 2 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Nicole Torralva, P.E., Director of Public Works 
Kenny Henderson, Director of Street and Drainage Services 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a construction contract for the base 
bid and bid alternate #1 with Alpha Constructors, of Temple for the construction of sidewalks on 
South 1st Street in the amount of $182,850.65. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Included in the City’s 2012-2013 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Action Plan is funding for South 1st Street Sidewalk Improvements Project. The project is located 
along South 1st Street within the boundaries of Ave. F on the north and Ave. M on the south. The 
project includes design and installation of sidewalks, not to exceed 8 feet in width, and any necessary 
ADA ramps, curbs and gutters, along with landscaping. This is a multi-year project with this being the 
third year of funding. 
 
On August 27, 2013, the City of Temple received two (2) bids on this sidewalk project. As shown on 
the attached bid tabulation, Alpha Constructors of Temple submitted the low bid with a base bid cost 
of $88,542.05, taking the project from Avenue K to Avenue I. Four add alternates were also accepted 
extending work to the north. Alternate bids with associated costs were included as follows: 
 
 Alternate #1 – West Avenue I to West Avenue H in the amount of $94,308.60 
 Alternate #2 – West Avenue H to West Avenue G in the amount of $110,563.59 
 Alternate #3 – West Avenue G to West Avenue F in the amount of $107,307.29 
 Alternate #4 - Resurface Bus Stop retaining wall in the amount of $6,435 
 
The City of Temple has worked with Alpha Constructors in the past and found them to be a 
responsible contractor. Per the attached letter of recommendation, the consultant and City Staff 
recommend that the base bid and bid alternate #1 be constructed at this time based on the funds that 
are available in the CDBG program. 

 
 
 



09/19/13 
Item #4(J) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

FISCAL IMPACT:  $200,972 of Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds are available in 
account 260-6100-571-6315 project # 100623, Sidewalk/Curb/Gutter. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Engineer’s Letter of Recommendation 
Bid Tabulation 
Resolution 



CDBG South First Street Sidewalk Improvements – Phase III through VI – Letter of Recommendation Page 1 
 

 
 

 
 

215 North Main Street 
Temple, Texas 76501 

 (254) 899-0899 
Fax (254) 899-0901 

www.clark-fuller.com 
Firm Registration No: F-10384 

 
  

 
 
 
September 4, 2013 
 
 
City of Temple 
Kenny Henderson 
3210 E. Ave H, Bldg A 
Temple, Texas 76501 
 
 
Re:  City of Temple - C.D.B.G. South First Street Sidewalk Improvements – Phase III – VI 
 Bid # 61-01-13 
 
 
Dear Mr. Henderson,  
 
We have reviewed the bids for the above referenced project.  Alpha Constructors submitted a 
Base Bid ($88,542.05) with a Bid Alternate 1 ($94,308.60) totaling $182,850.65.  In addition, 
Alpha Constructors submitted a Bid Alternate 2 totaling $110,563.59, a Bid Alternate 3 totaling 
$107,307.29, and a Bid Alternate 4 totaling $6,435.00.  Please see the enclosed Bid Tabulation 
Sheet and Bid Schedule Breakout for detailed information.   
 
The initial construction budget for the present year is approximately $200,000 and the 
engineer’s final opinion of probable cost to construct both the Base Bid with Bid Alternate 1 was 
$199,418.00.   
  
We are recommending that you award the Base Bid and Bid Alternate 1, excluding Bid 
Alternates 2, 3, and 4 to Alpha Constructors. We believe, through personal experience, that 
Alpha Constructors is qualified and is capable of providing the C.D.B.G. South First Street 
Sidewalk Improvements as required in this project. 
 
We believe that Alpha Constructors is a proven company with many successfully completed 
projects and we look forward to working with them on this project. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
 
 
Monty Clark, P.E., CPESC 
 

http://www.clark-fuller.com/�


Base Bid
No. Item Description Est. Quan. UOM Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost

Base Bid Phase III Improvements
1 Site R.O.W. Preparation & Clearing 4 STA 585.00$            2,340.00$            1,500.00$    6,000.00$         
2 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits, & Insurance 100% LS 2,106.00$         2,106.00$            10,000.00$  10,000.00$       
3 Provide Miscellaneous Demolition 100% LS 7,020.00$         7,020.00$            25,000.00$  25,000.00$       
4 Remove & Relocate Existing Commercial Sign 1 EA 3,042.00$         3,042.00$            7,500.00$    7,500.00$         
5 Provide New Reinforced Concrete Pavement Section 215 SY 63.18$              13,583.70$          63.00$         13,545.00$       
6 Provide New HMAC Pavement Section 98 SY 47.39$              4,644.22$            31.00$         3,038.00$         
7 Provide New Concrete Flatwork Section 228 SY 52.65$              12,004.20$          49.50$         11,286.00$       
8 Provide New Concrete Curb and Gutter 373 LF 21.94$              8,183.62$            18.00$         6,714.00$         
9 Provide New Handicap Curb Ramp 10 EA 912.60$            9,126.00$            900.00$       9,000.00$         
10 Provide New 4" Schedule 40 PVC Utility Sleeves 464 LF 14.04$              6,514.56$            6.00$           2,784.00$         
11 Provide New Landscaping 100% LS 7,195.50$         7,195.50$            7,000.00$    7,000.00$         
12 Provide New Irrigation 100% LS 3,042.00$         3,042.00$            5,000.00$    5,000.00$         
13 Provide New Street and Pedestrian Signage & Striping 100% LS 4,475.25$         4,475.25$            2,500.00$    2,500.00$         
14 Provide New Traffic Control Plan & Implementation 100% LS 5,265.00$         5,265.00$            12,000.00$  12,000.00$       
Total Base Bid 

88,542.05$        121,367.00$     
Bid Alternate #1 Phase IV Improvements

15 Site R.O.W. Preparation & Clearing 4 STA 585.00$            2,340.00$            900.00$       3,600.00$         
16 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits, & Insurance 100% LS 2,340.00$         2,340.00$            8,000.00$    8,000.00$         
17 Provide Miscellaneous Demolition 100% LS 11,115.00$       11,115.00$          30,000.00$  30,000.00$       
18 Remove from Bid 0% -$                  -$                     -$             -$                  
19 Provide New Reinforced Concrete Pavement Section 370 SY 63.18$              23,376.60$          63.00$         23,310.00$       
20 Saw Cut, Remove, and Replace Existing HMAC Pavement Section 80 SY 47.39$              3,791.20$            31.00$         2,480.00$         
21 Provide New Concrete Flatwork Section 125 SY 52.65$              6,581.25$            49.50$         6,187.50$         
22 Provide New Concrete Curb and Gutter 257 LF 21.94$              5,638.58$            18.00$         4,626.00$         
23 Provide New Handicap Curb Ramp 3 EA 912.60$            2,737.80$            900.00$       2,700.00$         
24 Provide New 5' Precast Storm Inlet 1 EA 3,510.00$         3,510.00$            9,000.00$    9,000.00$         
25 Provide New 15" RCP Storm Sewer 10 LF 100.62$            1,006.20$            150.00$       1,500.00$         
26 Provide New Connection to Existing Storm Sewer 1 EA 409.50$            409.50$               600.00$       600.00$            
27 Provide New Schedule 40 PVC Utility Sleeves 480 LF 14.04$              6,739.20$            6.00$           2,880.00$         
28 Provide New Chain Link Fencing 95 LF 29.25$              2,778.75$            55.00$         5,225.00$         
29 Provide New Rolling Gates 2 EA 2,457.00$         4,914.00$            550.00$       1,100.00$         
30 Provide New Landscaping 100% LS 4,148.82$         4,148.82$            5,000.00$    5,000.00$         
31 Provide New Irrigation 100% LS 2,925.00$         2,925.00$            3,000.00$    3,000.00$         
32 Provide New Street and Pedestrian Signage & Striping 100% LS 5,042.70$         5,042.70$            2,000.00$    2,000.00$         
33 Provide New Traffic Control Plan & Implementation 100% LS 4,914.00$         4,914.00$            11,000.00$  11,000.00$       

94,308.60$        122,208.50$     
Bid Alternate #2 Phase V Improvements

34 Site R.O.W. Preparation & Clearing 4 STA 585.00$            2,340.00$            1,000.00$    4,000.00$         
35 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits, & Insurance 100% LS 4,914.00$         4,914.00$            7,000.00$    7,000.00$         
36 Provide Miscellaneous Demolition 100% LS 7,020.00$         7,020.00$            21,000.00$  21,000.00$       
37 Remove from Bid 0% EA -$                  -$                     -$             -$                  
38 Remove & Relocate Existing Commercial Sign 1 EA 4,212.00$         4,212.00$            7,500.00$    7,500.00$         
39 Remove & Relocate Existing Utility/Light Pole and Overhead Electrical Wirin 1 EA 6,084.00$         6,084.00$            7,500.00$    7,500.00$         
40 Provide New Reinforced Concrete Pavement Section 360 SY 63.18$              22,744.80$          63.00$         22,680.00$       
41 Saw Cut, Remove, and Replace Existing HMAC Pavement Section 45 SY 47.39$              2,132.55$            31.00$         1,395.00$         
42 Provide New Concrete Flatwork Section 136 SY 52.65$              7,160.40$            49.50$         6,732.00$         
43 Provide New Concrete Curb and Gutter 165 LF 21.94$              3,620.10$            18.00$         2,970.00$         
44 Provide New Handicap Ramp 18 LF 912.60$            16,426.80$          900.00$       16,200.00$       
45 Provide New Handicap Railing 40 LF 58.50$              2,340.00$            55.00$         2,200.00$         
46 Provide New Handicap Curb Ramp 1 EA 912.60$            912.60$               900.00$       900.00$            
47 Provide New 4" Schedule 40 PVC Utility Sleeves 504 LF 17.55$              8,845.20$            6.00$           3,024.00$         
48 Provide New Intruder Resistant Chain Link Fencing 67 LF 52.65$              3,527.55$            75.00$         5,025.00$         
49 Provide New Landscaping 100% LS 4,676.49$         4,676.49$            4,000.00$    4,000.00$         
50 Provide New Irrigation 100% LS 2,925.00$         2,925.00$            3,000.00$    3,000.00$         
51 Provide New Street & Pedestrian Signage & Striping 100% LS 5,651.10$         5,651.10$            2,500.00$    2,500.00$         
52 Provide & Implement a Traffic Control Plan 100% LS 5,031.00$         5,031.00$            7,000.00$    7,000.00$         

110,563.59$        124,626.00$     
Bid Alternate #3 Phase VI Improvements

53 Site R.O.W. Preparation & Clearing 4 STA 585.00$            2,340.00$            1,200.00$    4,800.00$         
54 Mobilization, Bonds, Permits, & Insurance 100% LS 2,574.00$         2,574.00$            6,000.00$    6,000.00$         
55 Provide Miscellaneous Demolition 100% LS 7,956.00$         7,956.00$            15,000.00$  15,000.00$       
56 Remove & Relocate Existing Commercial Sign 1 EA 3,510.00$         3,510.00$            7,500.00$    7,500.00$         
57 Remove & Relocate Existing Utility/Light Pole and Overhead Electrical Wirin 2 EA 6,084.00$         12,168.00$          8,000.00$    16,000.00$       
58 Provide New Reinforced Concrete Pavement Section 395 SY 63.18$              24,956.10$          65.00$         25,675.00$       
59 Saw Cut, Remove, and Replace Existing HMAC Pavement Section 48 SY 47.39$              2,274.72$            31.00$         1,488.00$         
60 Remove & Replace Existing Gravel Pavement Section 11.5 SY 58.50$              672.75$               28.00$         322.00$            
61 Provide New Concrete Flatwork Section 180 SY 52.65$              9,477.00$            55.00$         9,900.00$         
62 Provide New Concrete Curb and Gutter 200 LF 21.94$              4,388.00$            19.00$         3,800.00$         
63 Provide New Handicap Ramp 16 LF 74.88$              1,198.08$            800.00$       12,800.00$       
64 Provide New Concrete Curb 21.5 LF 32.76$              704.34$               19.00$         408.50$            
65 Provide New Handicap Railing 17 LF 58.50$              994.50$               65.00$         1,105.00$         
66 Provide New Reinforced Concrete Stem Wall 17 LF 44.46$              755.82$               155.00$       2,635.00$         
67 Provide New Handicap Curb Ramp 5 EA 912.60$            4,563.00$            900.00$       4,500.00$         
68 Provide New 5' Precast Storm Inlet 1 EA 3,510.00$         3,510.00$            8,000.00$    8,000.00$         
69 Provide New 18" RCP 15 Degree Bend 1 EA 409.50$            409.50$               550.00$       550.00$            
70 Provide New 18" RCP Storm Sewer 8 LF 140.40$            1,123.20$            155.00$       1,240.00$         
71 Provide New Connection to Existing Storm Sewer 2 EA 409.50$            819.00$               600.00$       1,200.00$         
72 Provide New 4" Schedule 40 PVC Utility Sleeves 436 LF 14.04$              6,121.44$            6.00$           2,616.00$         
73 Provide New Landscaping 100% LS 4,419.09$         4,419.09$            6,000.00$    6,000.00$         
74 Provide New Irrigation 100% LS 2,925.00$         2,925.00$            2,500.00$    2,500.00$         
75 Provide New Pedestrian and Traffic Signage & Striping 100% LS 2,310.75$         2,310.75$            2,500.00$    2,500.00$         
76 Remove & Relocate Existing Water Meter and Service 2 EA 643.50$            1,287.00$            2,000.00$    4,000.00$         
77 Provide New Traffic Control Plan & Implementation 100% LS 5,850.00$         5,850.00$            7,000.00$    7,000.00$         

107,307.29$        147,539.50$     

Bid Alternate #4 Phase IV Improvements
78 Provide New 4"x6" or 4"x8" Limestone Brick Veneer 100% LS 6,435.00$         6,435.00$            6,500.00$    6,500.00$         

6,435.00$            6,500.00$         

407,156.53$      522,241.00$     

TCB Constructors Inc.

Total Phase - Bid Alternate #4
C.D.B.G. Avenue G Sidewalk Improvements

Bid Tabulation Sheet
C.D.B.G South First Street Sidewalk Improvements - Phase III - VI

Bid Date: August 27, 2013

Alpha Constructors

C.D.B.G. Avenue G Sidewalk Improvements
Total Phase - Bid Alternate #1

C.D.B.G. Avenue G Sidewalk Improvements

Total Base Bid & Bid Alternates 1,2, 3, & 4

Total Phase - Bid Alternate #2
C.D.B.G. Avenue G Sidewalk Improvements

Total Phase - Bid Alternate #3
C.D.B.G. Avenue G Sidewalk Improvements



Tabulation of Bids Received
on August 27, 2013 at 2:00 p.m.

CDBG South First Street Sidewalk Improvements - Phase III - VI
Bid # 61-01-13

Bidders
Alpha Constructors TCB Construction Inc.

Temple, Texas Austin, Texas

Description

Phase 3 Base Bid $88,542.05 $121,367.00

Phase 4 (Alternate 1) $94,308.60 $122,208.50

Phase 5 (Alternate 2) $110,563.59 $124,626.00

Phase 6 (Alternate 3) $107,307.29 $147,539.50

Alternate 4 $6,435.00 $6,500.00

Total Base Bid and Alternate 1 $182,850.65 $243,575.50

Bid Bond 5% 5%

Bond Requirement Affidavit Yes No 

Credit Check Authorization Yes Yes

Acknowledged Addendum Yes Yes

Statement of Bidder's Qualifications Yes Yes

Contractor Certifications Yes Yes

Noncollusion Affidavit of Prime Bidder Yes Yes
Business Certification for Business 
Concerns Seeking Section 3 Preference 
in Contracting No Yes
Employee Certification for Business 
Concerns Seeking Section 3 Preference 
in Contracting No No 

Contactor's Section 3 Compliance Plan Yes Yes

Recommended for Council Award



RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE BASE 
BID AND BID ALTERNATE #1, WITH ALPHA CONSTRUCTORS OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, FOR THE CONSTRUCTION OF SIDEWALKS ON SOUTH 
1ST STREET, IN THE AMOUNT OF $182,850.65; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, included in the City’s 2012-2013 Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) Action Plan is funding for the South 1st Street Sidewalk Improvement Project;  
 
Whereas, the project is located along South 1st Street within the boundaries of Avenue F 

on the north and Avenue M on the south and includes design and installation of sidewalks, not to 
exceed 8 feet in width, any necessary ADA ramps, curbs and gutters and landscaping; 

   
Whereas, on August 27, 2013, the City received two (2) bids on this sidewalk project 

and recommends the City authorize a construction contract with Alpha Constructors of Temple, 
Texas, for the base bid and bid alternate #1, for the construction of sidewalks on south 1st Street, 
in the amount of $182,850.65; 

 
Whereas, staff has worked with Alpha Constructors in the past and has found them to be 

a responsible contractor; 
 

 Whereas, funds are budgeted in the Community Development Block Grant Account No. 
260-6100-571-6315, Project No. 100623; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
contract with Alpha Constructors of Temple, Texas, after approval as to form by the City 
Attorney, for the base bid and bid alternate #1 for the construction of the sidewalks on south 1st 
Street, in the amount of $182,850.65. 

 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(K) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Gary Smith, Chief of Police 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution ratifying an Interlocal Cooperation Contract with 
Texas State University for the acceptance of Tobacco Enforcement funding in the amount of $9,450 
for the purposes of enforcing Subchapter H, Chapter 161 of the Texas Health and Safety Code for 
fiscal year 2014. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Texas law prohibits the sale or distribution of tobacco products to any person 
under the age of 18.  The police department proposes to use funding from Texas State University – 
Texas School Safety Center (TxSSC) to conduct covert investigations into the possible illegal sales of 
tobacco products to minors that violate the Health and Safety Code, §161.082. After applying for the 
grant, TxSSC required that the City enter into an Interlocal Cooperation Contract which outlines the 
funding for this grant and the services to be performed by the City.  All activity under the grant must 
be reported on a monthly basis to the TxSSC.  The TxSSC is acting on behalf of the Department of 
State Health Services.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: TxSSC will reimburse contracted law enforcement agencies $75.00 for each 
completed investigation.  Funding is allowed for the purpose of conducting investigations for a 
minimum of 25% or a maximum of 200% of the tobacco permitted retail outlets in the jurisdiction.  
There are approximately 85 tobacco permitted retail outlets in Temple.  The police department plans 
to conduct investigations at rate of 149% of the permitted outlets, meaning that 126 investigations are 
planned for the 85 tobacco permitted retail outlets during FY14.   
 
If this plan is met, the City will receive $9,450 in grant funds. It is estimated that it will cost the City 
$6,659 in overtime hours as well as operational and fuel costs of $1,800 for police vehicles.  The total 
estimated expense is $8,459.  The remaining revenue would pay officer’s overtime for conducting 
compliance inspections on retail locations and provide education services to the public in the area of 
state laws pertaining to tobacco sales to minors.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 
  



 

 RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
RATIFYING AN INTERLOCAL COOPERATION CONTRACT WITH TEXAS 
STATE UNIVERSITY FOR THE ACCEPTANCE OF TOBACCO 
ENFORCEMENT FUNDING FOR FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014, FOR THE 
PURPOSES OF ENFORCING SUBCHAPTER H, CHAPTER 161, OF THE 
TEXAS HEALTH AND SAFETY CODE, IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,450; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

               
 

Whereas, Texas law prohibits the sale or distribution of tobacco products to any person 
under the age of 18 – the Temple Police Department proposes to use funding from Texas State 
University – Texas School Safety Center (TxSSC) to conduct covert investigations into the possible 
illegal sales of tobacco products to minors that violate the Health and Safety Code, §161.082; 
 

Whereas, after applying for the grant, TxSSC required the City enter into an Interlocal 
Cooperation Contract which outlines the funding for this grant and the services to be performed by 
the City - all activity under the grant must be reported on a monthly basis to the TxSSC which is 
acting on behalf of the Department of State Health Services; 
 

Whereas, the police department plans to conduct investigations at a rate of 149% of the 
permitted outlets, meaning that 126 investigations are planned for the 85 tobacco permitted retail 
outlets during fiscal year 2013-2014 - TxSSC will reimburse contracted law enforcement agencies 
$75 for each completed investigation; 
 

Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize this action. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council accepts grant funds from the Texas School Safety Center (TxSSC) 
for Tobacco Enforcement Funding, and authorizes the City Manager to execute the Interlocal 
Cooperation Contract with Texas State University and any other documents which may be necessary 
for this grant. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
____________________________   ____________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 

 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

09/19/13 
Item #4(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 1 of 7 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Kim Foutz, Assistant City Manager / Interim Director of Planning  
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: SECOND READING - Z-FY-13-26: Consider adopting an ordinance 
authorizing a Conditional Use Permit to allow a freestanding personal wireless cell tower in an 
existing Commercial District, located on 0.02 ± acres out of Lot 2, Block 1, Glendale Park, Section VI 
at 2615 South 37th Street and Tract A, Block 3, Glendale Park Section III, at 2707 South 37th Street. 
 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION At its meeting on August 5, 2013, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 7/0 in accordance with Staff recommendation to recommend approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a freestanding personal wireless cell tower.  Commissioner Martin 
was absent. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt ordinance as presented in item description, on second and final 
reading. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the requested Conditional Use where for the following reasons: 
 
1. The request is compatible with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 
2. The request complies with the Thoroughfare, Plan;  
3. Public facilities are available to serve the property; and  
4. The applicant has demonstrated compliance with UDC Section 5.4.5 Personal Wireless 

Service Facilities: Design Standards.  
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  Please refer to the draft minutes of case Z-FY-13-26 from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission meeting on August 5, 2013.  This request is to allow a new freestanding personal 
wireless cell tower due to Verizon Wireless network capacity failures within and around the Scott and 
White Hospital area.  If approved, the 120-foot high monopole cell tower and its equipment shelter 
would be enclosed by an 8-foot high wood fence with three strands of barbed wire along the top.  
UDC Section 7.7.5 D allows security fencing for utility facilities to be topped with barbed wire that is 
not closer than six feet to the ground. 
 
 
 



09/19/13 
Item #4(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 2 of 7 

 
 
The applicant is pursuing a Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for a personal use wireless cell tower, 
because although the use is allowed in the property’s existing Commercial zoning district, it is not a 
collocation, per UDC Section 5.4 (Personal Wireless Service Facilities).  The applicant has submitted 
a letter regarding the inability to collocate.  At the Planning and Zoning Commission meeting, Andy 
Kampen from KGI Wireless spoke on behalf of Verizon, the applicant.  He answered technical 
questions regarding the proposed tower and addressed collocation issues. 
 
Personal wireless cell towers pursuing C.U.P.s are subject to the following design standards in 
Section 5.4.5 of the UDC:   

 
 
A. Boundary and Use Setbacks  
1. A guy or guy anchor for a facility must not be closer than 20 feet to a bounding property line.  
Staff note: The proposed freestanding monopole does not have a guy or guy anchors. 
 
2. The distance between the base of a self-supported tower and the property line of any 
residential zoning district or use must not be less than 3 times the height of the tower structure.  
Staff note: The proposed tower is located in the Commercial zoning district and is surrounded 
by commercial and retail uses. 
 
B. Security Screening Fence  
1. A solid, wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must completely enclose 
the base of every tower.  Staff note: The site plan proposes an eight foot high wood fence 
enclosed around the tower base and equipment shelter. 
 
2. In a residential zoning district or on property that abuts a residential zoning district or use, a 
solid wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must complete enclose all 
mechanical equipment and accessory structures.  Staff note: The request is in the Commercial 
District and proposes an eight foot high wood fence enclosed around the tower base and 
equipment shelter. 
 
3. A security screening fence for a facility built or permitted after May 17th, 2001, may not be 
less than 6 feet in height.  Staff note: This request proposes an eight foot high wood fence. 
 
4. A security fence must be built to safely discourage unauthorized access to facilities by 
climbing.  Staff note: The applicants propose an eight foot high fence topped with three strands 
of barbed wire, as allowed by UDC Section 7.7.5 D. 
  
5. External and internal gates and doors that provide access to a facility must be equipped with 
a self-locking or self-latching mechanism for purposes of preventing unauthorized access.  
Staff note: The site plan reflects compliance with this requirement. 
 
 
 
 
 



09/19/13 
Item #4(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 3 of 7 

 
 

 
6. Screening is not required for a facility located on a building that is not designed or built 
primarily to support the facility, if the ancillary equipment, including but not limited to the 
equipment enclosure, is not visible from an abutting property line or public street right-of-way.  
Staff note: The site plan reflects an eight foot high wood fence for screening around the site’s 
perimeter. 
 
C. Screening  
 
1. As much of the total facility as possible must be screened or located so as to not be visible 
from prevalent views.  Staff note: The proposed tower base and equipment shelter will be 
screened by an eight foot high wood fence. 
 
2. Landscaping must be continuously maintained in a healthy, growing condition and be 
trimmed as necessary to comply with ordinances governing height of grass, corner sight 
obstruction and street and sidewalk obstruction.  Staff note: Verizon assures staff a 
maintenance technician will be responsible for the site. 
 
D. Collocation  
 
A new freestanding tower is not permitted unless the applicant demonstrates to the satisfaction 
of the approving authority that existing, permitted or proposed alternative support structures 
cannot accommodate the proposed facilities for the following reasons:  
 
1. Height is not sufficient to meet applicant’s engineering requirements;  
2. Structural strength is not sufficient to support applicant’s proposed facilities and cannot be 
reinforced in accordance with engineering requirements;  
3. Other aspects of structure do not meet applicant’s technical design requirements;  
4. Electromagnetic interference would result from collocation;  
5. Fees or costs for sharing or adapting are unreasonable; any cost that is less than the cost to 
construct and develop a new tower is presumed to be reasonable;  
6. Owners of alternative structures are unwilling to accommodate the applicant’s needs within 
30 days after the date such owners received applicant's written request; or  
7. Other factors render alternative support structures unsuitable. 
 
 

Staff note: The applicant has submitted a letter regarding the inability to collocate.  Please see the 
attached letter. 
 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following table shows the subject property, existing 
zoning and current land uses: 
 
 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 
Use Photo 

Subject 
Property 

C 
Undeveloped 
Land  

North 
 

C 
Commercial 
Uses 

 

    



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 
Use Photo 

South C 
Commercial, 
Restaurant, & 
Hotel Uses 

    



Direction Zoning 
Current Land 
Use Photo 

East  GR,  
Restaurant, 
Hotel, & Retail 
Uses  

    

West 
 

C 
Commercial & 
Service Uses 

 
 
 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE:  Sixteen notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 500-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of Thursday August 22, 2013 at 4:00 PM, two notices were returned in favor of the 
use permit and three notices were returned in denial of the request. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
 



09/19/13 
Item #4(L) 

Consent Agenda 
Page 7 of 7 

 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning Map  
Land Use and Character Map 
Buffer Notification Map 
Response Letters 
Applicant’s Collocation Letter 
FAA Letter 
Verizon Site Plan Exhibits 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 
 
  



(

(

(

(

( (

(

(

(

(

(1

1

1

1

22

3

2
4 3

2

1

3

1 2

1

21
12

1B

TRACT B

TRACT A

TRACT B

604-A

604-M

604A-L

26
09

1348

1749

26
09

2023

26
26

27
07

27
03

2615

1402

14141420150815201616

27
08

1704

C

GR

T5-C

CC

C

GR

EVERTON DR

S 3
7T

H 
ST

S 3
9T

H 
ST

SW H K DODGEN LOOP

Z-FY-13-26 C.U.P. for Personal Wireless Cell Tower 2615 & 2702 S. 37th St.

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1
0 100 20050

Feet

1Case

Zoning

Subdivisions

Parcel

Outblocks

Addresses

( Blocks

Lots 7/17/2013
City of Temple GIS



EVERTON DR

S 3
7T

H 
ST

S 3
9T

H 
ST

SW H K DODGEN LOOP µ

Z-FY-13-26 C.U.P. for Personal Wireless Cell Tower 2615 & 2702 S. 37th St.

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation

Estate Residential

Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential

Auto-Urban Multi-Family

Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial

Suburban Commercial

Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District

Industrial

Business Park

Public Institutional

Parks & Open Space

Agricultural/Rural

Cell_and_Easement

0 100 20050
Feet

7/17/2013
City of Temple GIS



16 Notices Mailed

2 Agree         A

3 Disagree    D

A
D

D

D

A















Mail Processing Center
Federal Aviation Administration
Southwest Regional Office
Obstruction Evaluation Group
2601 Meacham Boulevard
Fort Worth, TX 76137

Aeronautical Study No.
2013-ASW-2049-OE

Page 1 of 3

Issued Date: 05/07/2013

Mikhail Raznobriadsev
Alltel Communications Investments, Inc.
1120 Sanctuary Pkwy
Suite 150 GASA5REG
Alpharetta, GA 30009

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Monopole Scott and White
Location: Temple, TX
Latitude: 31-04-32.25N NAD 83
Longitude: 97-22-12.37W
Heights: 679 feet site elevation (SE)

110 feet above ground level (AGL)
789 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure does not exceed obstruction standards and would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s), if any, is(are) met:

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

_____ At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part I)
__X__ Within 5 days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part II)

Based on this evaluation, marking and lighting are not necessary for aviation safety. However, if marking/
lighting are accomplished on a voluntary basis, we recommend it be installed and maintained in accordance
with FAA Advisory circular 70/7460-1 K Change 2.

This determination expires on 11/07/2014 unless:

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.
(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission

(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.



Page 2 of 3

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION
OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates , heights,
frequency(ies) and power . Any changes in coordinates , heights, and frequencies or use of greater power will
void this determination. Any future construction or alteration , including increase to heights, power, or the
addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the
FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or
regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

Any failure or malfunction that lasts more than thirty (30) minutes and affects a top light or flashing obstruction
light, regardless of its position, should be reported immediately to (877) 487-6867 so a Notice to Airmen
(NOTAM) can be issued. As soon as the normal operation is restored, notify the same number.

A copy of this determination will be forwarded to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) because the
structure is subject to their licensing authority.

If we can be of further assistance, please contact our office at (817) 321-7752. On any future correspondence
concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical Study Number 2013-ASW-2049-OE.

Signature Control No: 186785721-189204643 ( DNE )
Alice Yett
Technician

Attachment(s)
Frequency Data

cc: FCC



Page 3 of 3

Frequency Data for ASN 2013-ASW-2049-OE

LOW
FREQUENCY

HIGH
FREQUENCY

FREQUENCY
UNIT ERP

ERP
UNIT

698 806 MHz 1000 W
806 824 MHz 500 W
824 849 MHz 500 W
851 866 MHz 500 W
869 894 MHz 500 W
896 901 MHz 500 W
901 902 MHz 7 W
930 931 MHz 3500 W
931 932 MHz 3500 W
932 932.5 MHz 17 dBW
935 940 MHz 1000 W
940 941 MHz 3500 W
1850 1910 MHz 1640 W
1930 1990 MHz 1640 W
2305 2310 MHz 2000 W
2345 2360 MHz 2000 W



















































SITE PLAN

1

SITE

PLAN

E1

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

,
 
7

6
5

0
4

2
6

1
5

 
S

.
 
3

7
T

H
 
S

T

(
2
6
1
4
1
1
)

*
*
*

S
C

O
T

T
 
A

N
D

 
W

H
I
T

E

06.10.13  ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

SITE "GROUNDING" SIGN

2







DETAIL SITE PLAN

1

SITE PLAN

DETAIL

E2

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

,
 
7

6
5

0
4

2
6

1
5

 
S

.
 
3

7
T

H
 
S

T

(
2
6
1
4
1
1
)

*
*
*

S
C

O
T

T
 
A

N
D

 
W

H
I
T

E

06.28.13  ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. F-6224

JUNE 28, 2013



RISER

ELECTRICAL

E3

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

,
 
7

6
5

0
4

2
6

1
5

 
S

.
 
3

7
T

H
 
S

T

(
2
6
1
4
1
1
)

*
*
*

S
C

O
T

T
 
A

N
D

 
W

H
I
T

E

06.28.13  ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

ELECTRICAL RISER

1

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. F-6224

JUNE 28, 2013



SPECIFICATIONS

ELECTRICAL

E4

(210) 308-9905

ARCHCOMM, LLC.

1006 Beckett

San Antonio, Texas 78213







LEASING

CONSTRUCTION

LANDLORD

T
E

M
P

L
E

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

,
 
7

6
5

0
4

2
6

1
5

 
S

.
 
3

7
T

H
 
S

T

(
2
6
1
4
1
1
)

*
*
*

S
C

O
T

T
 
A

N
D

 
W

H
I
T

E

06.28.13  ISSUE FOR CONSTRUCTION

FIRM REGISTRATION NO. F-6224

JUNE 28, 2013



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 5, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 3: Z-FY-13-26:  Hold a public hearing to consider and recommend action on a 
Conditional Use Permit to allow a freestanding personal wireless cell tower in an 
existing Commercial District, located on 0.02 ± acres out of Lot 2, Block 1, Glendale 
Park, Section VI at 2615 South 37th Street and Tract A, Block 3, Glendale Park 
Section III, at 2707 South 37th Street. 

Ms. Lyerly stated this item will go forward to City Council for first reading on September 5th 
and September 19, 2013 for second reading. 

The applicants are asking for a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for a freestanding personal 
wireless cell tower. The use is allowed on the property’s existing Commercial (C) district but 
only for collocation for personal wireless service facilities. The applicant is pursuing the CUP 
because they are proposing a new freestanding cell tower. 

Although the applicant owns two adjacent pieces of property; the request is only for one cell 
tower that would be located over the property line of both parcels. 

This request is brought about due to Verizon Wireless network capacity failures in and around 
Scott & White Hospital and the inability to collocate. The proposal is for a 120 foot tall 
monopole cell tower with equipment shelter. The applicants have a letter from the FAA for 
determination of no hazards to air navigation. 

Surrounding properties include commercial and service uses to the west, commercial, 
restaurant, and hotel uses to the south, commercial uses to the north, and restaurant, hotel 
and retail uses to the east. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map designate this area as Auto-Urban Commercial. The 
use is compatible. 

Sixteen notices were mailed out to a 500 foot buffer as required by the UDC. One notice was 
returned in favor and three were received in opposition. 

The applicants’ exhibits were shown and described to the Commissioners. 

Ms. Lyerly described the concrete wall and fence which would also have three strands of 
barbed wire on top to deter people from climbing the structure. This is allowed in the UDC. 

In order to approve a CUP for a personal wireless cell tower, some design standards have to 
be met:  

A. In accordance with UDC Section 5.4.5, A. Boundary and Use Setbacks: 



1. Guy or guy anchors for a facility must not be closer than 20 feet to a bounding 
property line.  

Staff note: The proposed freestanding monopole does not have a guy or guy 
anchors. 

2. The distance between the base of a self-supported tower and the property line of 
any residential zoning district or use must not be less than 3 times the height of the 
tower structure.  

Staff note: The proposed tower is located in the Commercial zoning district and is 
surrounded by commercial and retail uses. 

B. In accordance with UDC Section 5.4.5, B. Security Screening Fence: 

1. A solid, wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must 
completely enclose the base of every tower.  

Staff note: The site plan proposes an eight foot high fence enclosed around the 
tower base and equipment shelter. 

2. In a residential zoning district or on property that abuts a residential zoning 
district or use, a solid wood or masonry fence, a minimum of eight feet in height, must 
completely enclose all mechanical equipment and accessory structures. 

Staff note: The request is in the Commercial District, but does comply. 

3. A security screening fence for a facility built or permitted after May 17th, 2001, 
may not be less than six feet is height. 

Staff note: This request proposes an eight foot high wood fence. 

4. A security fence must be built to discourage unauthorized access to facilities by 
climbing.  

Staff note: The applicants propose an eight foot high fence topped with three 
strands of barbed wire, as allowed by UDC Section 7.7.5 D. 

5. External and internal gates and doors that provide access to a facility must be 
equipped with a self-locking or self-latching mechanism for purposes of preventing 
unauthorized access. 

Staff note: The site plan reflects compliance with this requirement. 

6. Screening is not required for a facility located on a building that is not designed 
or built primarily to support the facility, if the ancillary equipment, including but not 
limited to the equipment enclosure, is not visible from an abutting property line or public 
street right-of-way.  

Staff note: The site will be screened with an eight foot high wood fence. 



C. In accordance with UDC Section 5.4.5, Security Screening: 

1. As much of the total facility as possible must be screened or located so as to not 
be visible from prevalent views. 

Staff note: The proposed tower base and equipment shelter will be screened by 
an eight foot high wood fence. 

2. Landscaping must be continuously maintained in a healthy, growing condition 
and be trimmed as necessary to comply with ordinances governing height of grass, 
corner sight obstruction and street and sidewalk obstruction. 

Staff note: Verizon assures staff a maintenance technician will be responsible for 
the site. 

D. Collocation 

A new freestanding tower is not permitted unless the applicant demonstrates to the 
satisfaction of the approving authority that existing, permitted or proposed alternative 
support structures cannot accommodate the proposed facilities for the following 
reasons: 

1. Height is not sufficient to meet the applicant’s engineering requirements; 

2. Structural strength is not sufficient to support applicant’s proposed facilities and 
cannot be reinforced in accordance with engineering requirements; 

3. Other aspects of structure do not meet applicant’s technical design requirements; 

4. Electromagnetic interference would result from collocation; 

5. Fees or costs for sharing or adapting are unreasonable; any cost that is less than 
the cost to construct and develop a new tower is presumed to be reasonable; 

6. Owners of alternative structures are unwilling to accommodate the applicant’s  
needs within 30 days after the date such owners received applicant’s written request; or 

7. Other factors render alternative support structures unsuitable. 

Staff note: The applicant has submitted a letter regarding the inability to 
collocate. 

Staff recommendation for this request is approval of the requested Conditional Permit for the 
following reasons: 

The request complies with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 

The request complies with the Thoroughfare Plan;  

Public facilities are available to the subject property; and 

The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the design standards in Section 5.4.5 
of the UDC. 



Chair Staats opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Andy Kampen, KGI Wireless, 805 Los Cimas Parkway, Austin, Texas, stated he was 
representing Verizon tasked with finding suitable locations to meet their network needs. This 
project is called the Scott & White (S&W) project. The problem that Verizon Wireless is having 
is a network capacity problem in and around the S&W Hospital. The capacity problem is 
creating so much stress on Verizon’s network (amount of traffic) and has caused multiple 
dropped calls with emergency problems, etc. The first solution to this problem was to try to 
work out a collocation agreement with S&W and put antennas on the rooftop of the hospital. 
S&W’s ultimate determination was not to allow Verizon to collocate on their rooftop. Mr. 
Kampen stated S&W gets multiple inquiries from companies to collocate. 

Mr. Kampen stated the closest they could get to the hospital would be to work with land owned 
by S&W. When S&W was approached with this idea they said no and did not want to work with 
KGI on a tower to support their hospital. The next best solution to achieve KGI’s goal was to 
work west and south of the hospital and get as close as possible. Properties were canvassed 
for the proper fit and ability to support the tower and support S&W. 

Vice-Chair Sears asked for confirmation of the base size and Mr. Kampen stated typically the 
bases are three and a half to four feet wide. Mr. Kampen explained the pole was a single pole 
with no guy wires which supports itself and has to pass structural engineering for rated wind 
speeds. Monopoles can be anywhere from 60 to 180 feet tall. 

Commissioner Talley asked about one letter in opposition that stated it would be hazardous to 
the health and safety of the citizens. Mr. Kampen stated it was not. The height in which the 
antennas are, one would have to be standing directly in front of an active antenna for a period 
of 12 minutes of direct radiation. From a radio frequency (RF) perspective, there is no hazard. 

Chair Staats asked about the denial response letter received from S&W and what his opinion 
was. Mr. Kampen stated from his perspective that he had just heard about it. In KGI’s dealings 
with S&W, S&W had not been very cooperative in working with KGI in trying to facilitate their 
needs. S&W would not let them collocate on the roof or use adjacent properties. KGI 
approached S&W about the Hilton Garden Inn and perhaps putting a pole in at the corner of 
that property but S&W said no and did not state any reason. 

Chair Staats closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Talley made a motion to approve Item 3, Z-FY-13-26, and Commissioner 
Magaña made a second. 

Motion passed: (7:0) 
Commissioner Martin absent 

 



 
 

 
 

1 

 ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

[Z-FY-13-26] 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO ALLOW A 
FREESTANDING PERSONAL WIRELESS CELL TOWER IN AN EXISTING 
COMMERCIAL DISTRICT, LOCATED ON APPROXIMATELY 0.02 ACRES 
OUT OF LOT 2, BLOCK 1, GLENDALE PARK, SECTION VI AT 2615 SOUTH 
37TH STREET AND TRACT A, BLOCK 3, GLENDALE PARK SECTION III, 
ALSO KNOWN AS 2707 SOUTH 37TH STREET; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance of the City of Temple, Texas, provides for 

the issuance of conditional use permits under certain conditions and authorizes the City Council to 
impose such developmental standards and safeguards as the conditions and locations indicate to be 
important to the welfare or protection of adjacent property and for the protection of adjacent 
property from excessive noise, vibration, dust, dirt, smoke, fumes, gas, odor, explosion, glare, 
offensive view or other undesirable or hazardous conditions, and for the establishment of 
conditions of operation, time limits, location, arrangement and construction for any use for which a 
permit is authorized;  
 

Whereas, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Temple, Texas, after due 
consideration of the location and zoning classification of the establishment, has recommended that 
the City Council approve this application; and 
 

Whereas, the City Council of the City of Temple, Texas, after public notice as required by 
law, has at a public hearing, carefully considered all the evidence submitted concerning the 
establishment at 2707 South 37th Street, and has heard the comments and evidence presented by all 
persons supporting or opposing this matter at said public hearing, and after examining the location 
and the zoning classification of the establishment finds that the proposed use of the premises 
substantially complies with the comprehensive plan and the area plan adopted by the City Council. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council approves a Conditional Use Permit to allow a freestanding 
personal wireless cell tower in an existing Commercial District, located on approximately 0.02 
acres out of lot 2, block 1, Glendale Park, Section VI at 2615 South 37th Street and tract A, block 3, 
Glendale Park Section III, also known as 2707 South 37th Street, more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 

 



 
 

 
 

2 

 
Part 2: The owners/applicants, their employees, lessees, agents or representatives, 

hereinafter called "permittee" shall comply with the following developmental standards and 
conditions of operation: 

 
(a) Enclose 120-foot high monopole cell tower and equipment shelter by an 8-foot high 

wood fence with three strands of barbed wire along the top; 
 
(b) The City Council may deny or revoke a conditional use permit if it affirmatively 

determines that the issuance of the same is (a) incompatible with the surrounding uses of 
property, or (2) detrimental or offensive to the neighborhood or contrary to the health, 
safety, and general welfare of the City and its inhabitants. 

 
(c) A conditional use permit issued under this section runs with the property and is not 

affected by a change in the owner or lessee of a permitted establishment. 
 
(d) All conditional use permits issued under this section will be further conditioned that the 

same may be canceled, suspended or revoked in accordance with the revocation clause 
set forth in Section 7-609. 

 
Part 3: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 

preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative provisions 
hereof. 
 

Part 4: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any phrase, 
clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid by the final 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall not affect any of 
the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this ordinance, since the same 
would have been enacted by the City Council without the incorporation in this ordinance of any 
such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 5: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is accordingly so 
ordained. 
 

Part 6: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 5th day of 
September, 2013. 

 



 
 

 
 

3 

 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(M) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
  
Sharon Rostovich, Airport Director 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing acceptance of  the FY 14 Texas 
Department of Transportation, Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance Grant, in the amount of 
$100,000 (City match of $50,000), to help assist with lower cost airside and landside Airport 
improvements and maintenance items at the Draughon-Miller Central Texas Regional Airport.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The City of Temple, as part of our Airport Grant Assurance, has participated in the 
yearly grant program through the Texas Department of Transportation, Aviation Division for several 
years.  The RAMP Grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program that allows the City to determine 
projects on an as needed basis upon execution of the grant.  Eligible items currently being considered 
in FY14, but subject to change based on needs include a thermal image camera for the aircraft 
rescue firefighting truck; recertification of the Airport’s Spill Prevention Plan; upgrades to the Airport’s 
general aviation terminal to include restrooms and flooring; an awning for the maintenance facility to 
allow proper ventilation when working on the Airport’s 3,000 gallon tank refuelers; and upgrades to 
the fuel farm to include security lighting and cameras.     
 
TxDOT has approved Temple’s participation for inclusion in the FY14 RAMP Program at the 
maximum level of $100,000 (50-50 share).  The City’s matching funds are included in the FY14 
Airport operating budget.   
 
The Grant Agreement must be forwarded to TxDOT upon acceptance.       
 
FISCAL IMPACT: The expenditure of $100,000 (which includes the City’s $50,000 match) was 
approved in the FY14 Airport operating budget in account 110-5900-560-6310, project # 101023.  
The grant revenue was also included in the FY 14 budget in account 110-0000-431-0261.  TxDOT 
Aviation will reimburse the City 50% of the total project cost not to exceed $50,000.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

 
  



RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2013-2014 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, AVIATION DIVISION, 
ROUTINE AIRPORT MAINTENANCE GRANT (RAMP), TO ASSIST WITH 
LOWER COST AIRSIDE AND LANDSIDE AIRPORT IMPROVEMENTS AND 
MAINTENANCE ITEMS AT THE DRAUGHON-MILLER CENTRAL TEXAS 
REGIONAL AIRPORT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $100,000 AND WITH A CITY 
MATCH OF $50,000; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, the City of Temple, as part of the Airport Grant Assurance Program, has 

participated in the yearly grant program through the Texas Department of Transportation, 
Aviation Division, for several years;  

 
Whereas, the RAMP Grant is a pro-active, flexible grant program, that allows the City to 

determine projects on an “as needed” basis upon execution of the grant; 
   

Whereas, eligible items currently being considered, but subject to change based on 
needs, include a thermal image camera for the aircraft rescue firefighting truck, recertification of 
the Airport’s Spill Prevention Plan, upgrades to the airport’s general aviation terminal to include 
restrooms and flooring, an awning for the maintenance facility to allow proper ventilation when 
working on the Airport’s 3,000 gallon tank refuelers, and upgrades to the fuel farm to include 
security lighting and cameras; 

 
Whereas, TXDOT has approved Temple’s participation for inclusion in the FY14 RAMP 

Program at the maximum level of $100,000 with the City’s 50% matching funds of $50,000; 
 

 Whereas, funds are available in the Airport’s fiscal year 2013-2014 adopted operating 
budget for this grant in Account No. 110-5900-560-6310, Project No. 101023 – TXDOT 
Aviation will reimburse the City 50% of the total project cost not to exceed $50,000; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1:  The City Council accepts the grant funds from the Texas Department of 
Transportation’s Aviation Division, Routine Airport Maintenance Program for the Draughon-
Miller Central Texas Regional Airport, and authorizes the City Manager to execute any 
documents which may be necessary for this grant, including the City’s matching 50-50 share 
($50,000) of the funds.  

 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 



 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(N) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lonzo Wallace, Fire Chief 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing the renewal of the Emergency 
Management Performance Grant for FY 2013, which funds a portion of the administration cost for 
Emergency Management for the City of Temple in the amount of $38,119.48.  
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:   Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: The request is for approval of the renewal of the Emergency Management 
Performance Grant for FY 2013. This grant is funded by the Governors Department of Emergency 
Management (GDEM) to pay for a portion of the administration cost for Emergency Management for 
the City of Temple.  
 
Temple Fire and Rescue recommends approval of the renewal of this grant by the City Council.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The grant will reimburse the City for a maximum of 50% of the salary and benefit 
expenditures related to emergency management. The grant application estimates that the total 
expenditures will be $157,928.64 for fiscal year 2013 with a 50% grant amount of $78,964.32. In 
fiscal year 2012, the City was awarded grant funds in the amount of $37,644. 
 
Funds were included in the fiscal year 2013 Fire Department operating budget for the full amount of 
salary and benefit expenditures. Revenue was budgeted in the amount of $36,755. The City has been 
awarded $38,119.48 in FY 2013. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. _________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, AUTHORIZING THE RENEWAL OF THE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT (EMPG) FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2013-2014, WHICH FUNDS A PORTION OF THE ADMINISTRATION 
COSTS FOR EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT FOR THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
IN THE AMOUNT OF $38,119.48; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
 Whereas, the Emergency Management Performance Grant is funded through the 
Governor’s Department of Emergency Management (GDEM) and pays a portion of the 
administration costs for Emergency Management for the City; 
 
 Whereas, the grant will reimburse the City for a maximum of 50% of the salary and 
benefit expenditures related to emergency management; 
 

Whereas, the grant application estimates that the total expenditures will be $152,928.64 
for fiscal year 2013-2014 with a 50% grant amount of $78,964.32 – the City of Temple was 
awarded grant funds in the amount of $38,119.48; and  
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1: The City Council authorizes the renewal of the Emergency Management 
Performance Grant (EMPG) for fiscal year 2013-2014, which funds a portion of the 
administration costs for Emergency Management for the City of Temple. 
 

Part 2: The City Council accepts any funds that may be received for this grant, and 
authorizes the City Manager to execute any documents which may be necessary for this 
grant. 
 
 Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 

_______________________________ 
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(O) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Lacy Borgeson, City Secretary 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution designating the Temple Daily Telegram as the 
official newspaper for the City for fiscal year 2013-2014, in accordance with Section 4.20 of the 
Charter of the City of Temple. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Section 4.20 of the City Charter requires the City to designate an official 
newspaper for the publication of City ordinances, legal descriptions, and notices for each fiscal year, 
and enter into a contract with the designated paper.  The proposed resolution will accomplish this 
Charter requirement. 
 
Reference:  City Charter 
 
Section 4.20 OFFICIAL CONTRACT FOR PUBLISHING:  The City Council shall, as soon as 
practicable after the commencement of each fiscal year, enter into a contract with a public newspaper 
in the City as the official paper thereof, and to continue as such until another is selected, and shall 
cause to be published therein all ordinances, notices and other matters required by this Charter or by 
the ordinances of the City to be published 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: N/A 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Resolution 
 
 

  



 
 RESOLUTION NO. _____________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, DESIGNATING THE TEMPLE DAILY TELEGRAM AS THE 
OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER FOR THE CITY OF TEMPLE FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2013-2014, IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 4.20 OF THE CHARTER OF 
THE CITY OF TEMPLE, AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH THE DESIGNATED PAPER; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE.  

____________________________________________________________________________ 

Whereas, Section 4.20 of the City Charter requires the City to designate an official 
newspaper for the publication of City ordinances, legal descriptions, and notices for each fiscal 
year, as well as enter into contract with the designated paper; 

 
Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems the Temple Daily 

Telegram as the newspaper of most general circulation in Temple; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: The City Council designates the Temple Daily Telegram as the official newspaper 
for the City of Temple for fiscal year 2013-2014. 

 
Part 2: The City Manager, or his designee, is authorized to execute a contract with the 

Temple Daily Telegram, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, affirming the designation 
of the Temple Daily Telegram as the City’s official newspaper. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 

       
DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 

 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
               
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 

Item #4(P) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Nicole Torralva, Director of Public Works 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing payment of the annual invoice from 
Brazos River Authority in the amount of $91,494.23 which covers operation and maintenance costs 
associated with the City’s portion of raw water storage in Lake Belton and costs associated with 
repair work on the Belton Dam which was recently completed by the Corps of Engineers.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as discussed in item description.  
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Pursuant to the Water Storage Contract between the Brazos River Authority 
(“BRA”) and the City, dated July 16, 1962, the City is responsible for 22.013% of the BRA’s operation 
and maintenance costs associated with Lake Belton and the Belton Dam. The City’s share of the 
operation and maintenance costs are billed annually and usually total less than $25,000. Also under 
the contract, the City is responsible for 22.013% of any extraordinary or non-recurring repairs made to 
the Belton Dam. The Corps of Engineers recently completed major repairs to the Belton Dam and 
BRA was responsible for the cost of that work. Under the Storage Contract, Temple is also 
responsible for its percentage of the repair work which brought the City’s annual operation and 
maintenance payment to BRA to a total of $91,494.23. Staff is seeking authorization to make this 
payment to BRA.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Funding in the amount of $35,525 is available in account 520-5110-535-2651.  A 
budget adjustment is presented for Council’s approval appropriating the additional $55,970 from 
Unreserved Retained Earnings, account 520-0000-373-0412. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Budget Adjustment 
Resolution 
  



FY 2013
BUDGET ADJUSTMENT FORM

Use this form to make adjustments to your budget.  All adjustments must balance within a Department.
Adjustments should be rounded to the nearest $1. 

+ -

ACCOUNT NUMBER

PROJECT 
# DECREASE

520-5110-535-26-51

520-0000-373-04-12 55,970$      

TOTAL……………………………………………………………………………… 55,970$      

DOES THIS REQUEST REQUIRE COUNCIL APPROVAL? x Yes No

DATE OF COUNCIL MEETING

WITH AGENDA ITEM? x Yes No

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

Disapproved

Approved

DisapprovedCity Manager

Department Head/Division Director

Finance

Date

Date

Date

DO NOT POST

INCREASE

55,970$      

ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION

BRA-Water Services

W&S Unreserved Retained Earnings

55,970$      

To appropriate the additional funds needed to pay the FY 2013 annual invoice from Brazos River Authority.  The invoice amount 
is $91,494.23.  Currently, there is $35,525 available in the account.  An additional $55,970 is needed to pay the invoice in full.

9/19/2013

EXPLANATION OF ADJUSTMENT REQUEST- Include justification for increases AND reason why funds in decreased 
account are available.

Revised form - 10/27/06



RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF THE ANNUAL INVOICE 
FROM BRAZOS RIVER AUTHORITY IN THE AMOUNT OF $91,494.23 
WHICH COVERS OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COSTS ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE CITY’S PORTION OF RAW WATER STORAGE IN LAKE BELTON 
AND COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH REPAIR WORK ON THE BELTON DAM; 
AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, pursuant to the Water Storage Contract between the Brazos River Authority 

(“BRA”) and the City, dated July 16, 1962, the City is responsible for 22.013% of the BRA’s 
operation and maintenance costs associated with Lake Belton and the Belton Dam;  

 
Whereas, the City is also responsible for 22.013% of any extraordinary or non-recurring 

repairs made to the Belton Dam – the Corps of Engineers recently completed major repairs to the 
Belton Dam and BRA was responsible for the cost of that work; 

   
Whereas, the City is also responsible for its percentage of the repair work which brought 

the City’s annual operation and maintenance payment to BRA to a total of $91,494.23; 
 
Whereas, funding in the amount of $35,525 is available in account 520-5110-535-2651 – 

a budget adjustment is presented for Council’s approval appropriating the additional $55,970 
from Unreserved Retained Earnings, account 520-0000-373-0412; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes payment of the annual invoice from Brazos River 
Authority in the amount of $91,494.23 which covers operation and maintenance costs associated 
with the City’s portion of raw water storage in Lake Belton and costs associated with repair work 
on the Belton Dam. 

 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 
 

 
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

  
09/19/13 

Item #4(Q) 
Consent Agenda 

Page 1 of 1 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Traci Barnard, Director of Finance   
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Consider adopting a resolution authorizing budget amendments for fiscal year 
2012-2013. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  This item is to recommend various budget amendments, based on the adopted 
FY 2012-2013 budget. The amendments will involve transfers of funds between contingency 
accounts, department and fund levels. 
 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  The total amount of budget amendments is $280,485. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Budget Amendments 
Resolution 
 
  



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2013 BUDGET

September 19, 2013

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-1300-515-2623 Contracted Services (Purchasing) 2,500$           
110-0000-461-0424 Sale of Assets 2,500$            

520-5000-535-2623 Contracted Services (Public Works) 1,000$           
520-0000-443-3024 Online Auction Sales 1,000$            

Budget adjustment appropriates revenue and expenditures related to
online auction sales of assets. This budget adjustment appropriates
revenue to cover the expenditures for FY 2013 but does not appropriate
the full amount of revenue received from the auction sales.

110-1500-515-1150 Separation Pay 160,000$       
110-0000-352-1345 Desg Cap Projects - Unallocated 160,000$       

This budget adjustment appropriates funds to cover the additional 
separation pay for General Fund employees in FY 2013.  Funds are
available in Designated Capital Projects - Unallocated Fund Balance.

110-2011-521-2138 Public Safety Expenditures (Police) 38$                
110-0000-313-0331 Reserve for Public Safety 38$                

Appropriate funds to cover the cost of plaque to give Fire Chief Lonzo
Wallace.

110-2042-521-6213 101101 Capital Equipment/OCU State Seized 3,500$           
110-0000-442-0725 OCU State Seized Funds 3,500$            

To appropriate the value of a seized vehicle (2002 Honda Accord EX)
that will be placed in service and used by the Special Investigations
Unit.

111-2042-521-6213 101102 Capital Equipment/OCU State Seized 3,225$           
110-0000-442-0725 OCU State Seized Funds 3,225$            

To appropriate the value of a seized vehicle (2001 Chevrolet 1500
Suburban) that will be placed in service and used by the Special
Investigations Unit.

110-2100-529-2111 Computer Supplies (Animal Services) 650$              
110-2100-529-2112 Office Machines 650$              
110-2100-529-2114 Animal Food & Supplies 650$              
110-2100-529-2124 Camera/Film Supplies 650$              
110-0000-461-0841 Donations/Gifts 2,600$            

This budget adjustment recognizes additional revenue received in
Donations/Gifts and appropriates expenditures to cover unexpected
needs.

1



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2013 BUDGET

September 19, 2013

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

110-2232-522-2118 Supplies/Chemicals/Compressed Gas (Fire) 1,000$           
110-0000-442-1630 Fire Department Revenue 1,000$            

On April 23, 2013 Temple Fire & Rescue responded to an incident
of suspicious powder at 511 N. Main Street. The incident was deemed
to be a prank and the person responsible was ordered to reimburse
Temple Fire & Rescue for materials used in the incident. The first installment
was received and processed into the Fire Department revenue.
This budget adjustment appropriates that revenue and the related
expenditures.

110-3624-560-2711 Cost of Goods Sold/AvGas (Airport) 40,000$         
110-0000-446-1011 AvGas 40,000$          

Budget adjustment appropriates additional revenue and costs of goods sold 
expenditures related to fuel sales at the Airport. These accounts have 
exceeded budget due to both the increased cost of fuel and the increase in
gallons of fuel sold.

110-3700-524-2614 Waived Permit Fees (Construction Safety) 3,800$           
110-0000-422-0920 Other Permit Fees 3,800$            

Budget adjustment recognizes additional revenue received in Other
Permit Fees and appropriates and expenditure to offset waived
permit fees.

240-7000-551-2524 Curatorial Supplies (Railroad Museum) 2,000$           
240-0000-445-1136 Restricted Donations 2,000$            

Budget adjustment appropriates restricted donations received to be used for
archival activities.  The funds will be used to purchase archival boxes for
historical drawings.

240-4400-551-2721 Food Products (Mayborn) 3,500$           
240-4400-551-2725 Alcohol Beverages 2,000$           
240-4400-551-2210 Furniture & Fixtures 2,000$            
240-0000-445-1033 Catering Food Service 3,500$            

Budget adjustment increases cost of goods sold against forecasted revenue.

430-0000-461-0111 Interest Revenue 525$               
430-9100-591-8110 Transfer Out - General Fund 525$              
110-0000-490-2582 Transfer In 525$               
110-0000-352-1345 Designated Capital Projects - Unallocated 525$             

Appropriate interest earnings on the Reserve Fund for the 2005 Airport
Revenue bonds that will be transferred to the General Fund since the
initial reserve balance was funded by the General Fund. The Reserve Fund
will still maintain the required balance of $475,000.

2



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2013 BUDGET

September 19, 2013

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

520-5300-535-6213 100931 Contracted Services 27,136$         
520-0000-431-0163 Federal Grants 27,136$          
260-3800-519-6213 100931 Contracted Services 27,136$          
260-0000-431-0163 Federal Grants 27,136$         

Budget adjustment reallocates grant revenue and expenditures from the 
Clean Start Propane Refueling, Vehicle Incentive & Outreach program through
the Texas State Technical College (TSTC) and its partners CleanFUEL USA
and Public Solutions Group (PSG). The original budget adjustment 
appropriating the grant revenue and expenditures was appropriated 100%
to the Grant Fund but three of the conversion kits were placed on Water and
Wastewater Fund department vehicles. This budget adjustment appropriates
the revenue and expenditure related to those three vehicles.

TOTAL AMENDMENTS 280,485$       280,485$       

GENERAL FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                    
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -$                    
Taken From Contingency -$                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account -$                    

Beginning Judgments & Damages Contingency 80,000$          
Added to Contingency Judgments & Damages from Council Contingency -$                    
Taken From Judgments & Damages (39,859)$         
Net Balance of Judgments & Damages Contingency Account 40,141$          

Beginning Compensation Contingency 403,000$        
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (403,000)$       
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                    

Net Balance Council Contingency 40,141$         

Beginning Balance Budget Sweep Contingency -$                    
Added to Budget Sweep Contingency -$                    
Taken From Budget Sweep -$                    
Net Balance of Budget Sweep Contingency Account -$                    

WATER & SEWER FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 50,000$          
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                    
Taken From Contingency (11,882)$         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 38,118$          

Beginning Compensation Contingency 142,000$        
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (97,509)$         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account 44,491$          

Net Balance Water & Sewer Fund Contingency 82,609$         

3



CITY OF TEMPLE

BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR FY 2013 BUDGET

September 19, 2013

APPROPRIATIONS
ACCOUNT # PROJECT # DESCRIPTION Debit Credit

HOTEL/MOTEL TAX FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 147,759$        
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -$                    
Taken From Contingency (64,904)$         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 82,855$          

Beginning Compensation Contingency 10,100$          
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (10,100)$         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                    

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 82,855$         

DRAINAGE FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance 69,100$          
Added to Contingency Sweep Account -$                    
Carry forward from Prior Year -$                    
Taken From Contingency -$                    
Net Balance of Contingency Account 69,100$          

Beginning Compensation Contingency 25,100$          
Added to Compensation Contingency -$                    
Taken From Compensation Contingency (25,100)$         
Net Balance of Compensation Contingency Account -$                    

Net Balance Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Contingency 69,100$         

FED/STATE GRANT FUND
Beginning Contingency Balance -$                    
Carry forward from Prior Year 39,839$          
Added to Contingency Sweep Account 114,528$        
Taken From Contingency (11,413)$         
Net Balance of Contingency Account 142,954$        

4



 
RESOLUTION NO.     

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS, APPROVING BUDGET AMENDMENTS TO THE 
2012-2013 CITY BUDGET; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN 
MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

________________________________________________________________ 
 
 Whereas, on the 30th day of August, 2012, the City Council approved a budget 
for the 2012-2013 fiscal year; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council deems it in the public interest to make certain 
amendments to the 2012-2013 City Budget. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 Part 1:  The City Council approves amending the 2012-2013 City Budget by 
adopting the budget amendments which are more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 
 
 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 
this Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open 
Meetings Act. 
  
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 
 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
             

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
             
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary     City Attorney 



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 
Item #5 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  THIRD AND FINAL READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a five year franchise with Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., to provide non-
emergency ambulance transfer services within the City.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on third and final reading. 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  On November 6, 2008, the City Council authorized a five year franchise to Central 
Texas Regional EMS to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer services within the City. On May 
19, 2011, the Council approved an assignment of the franchise from Central Texas Regional EMS to 
Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. Acadian is one of two current non-emergency ambulance transfer 
service franchisees – the other being Scott & White EMS, Inc. 
 
The current franchise is set to expire on November 7, 2013. Acadian has submitted the necessary 
paperwork requesting renewal of the franchise. The Staff recommends authorizing a five year 
renewal of the franchise. Five years is the normal franchise term by City ordinance. Franchise 
renewals require three readings, a public hearing, and publication of a summary of the franchise 
ordinance in the Temple Daily Telegram.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: By ordinance, non-emergency ambulance transfer services franchisees pay the 
City 3½ % of the total amount billed per year. In the most recent full reported year (FY 2012), Acadian 
paid the City $24,652.46 in non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise fees.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
 
  



 
 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, GRANTING TO ACADIAN AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC., A NON-
EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE FOR FIVE YEARS TO OPERATE AND 
MAINTAIN A NON-EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICE 
UPON THE PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE, TEXAS PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE 
CONSTITUTION AND LAWS OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE CHARTER 
OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, AND CHAPTER 5 OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE; DECLARING FINDINGS OF 
FACT; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

                           
 
Whereas, Article III, Chapter 5 of the City Code, requires that a person or persons desiring 

to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer services on the streets of the City of Temple 
obtain a franchise, under conditions set out therein; 

 
Whereas, Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. has requested a franchise for a non-exclusive, 

non-emergency transfer service within the City of Temple; and 
 
Whereas, Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. has established to the satisfaction of the City 

Council by clear, cogent and convincing evidence that public convenience and necessity will be 
served by the granting of said franchise. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Part 1: A non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance 

transfer service is granted to Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., pursuant to Chapter 5 of the 
Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple, as amended, and the Charter of the City of Temple, 
as provided herein. 

 
Part 2: Definitions. 
 
As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning ascribed 

in this section: 
 

(a) City shall mean the City of Temple, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas, 
situated in Bell County; the words in the City or any similar reference to the territorial limits of 
the City of Temple, Texas, shall mean the area within the corporate limits of the City of Temple, 
Texas, as they now exist or as they may hereafter be lawfully modified or extended. 

 
(b) Company, Transfer Service Franchise Holder, as used herein, unless the context clearly 

indicates otherwise, shall mean Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., or its legally approved 
successors and assigns. 



 
 2 

(c) Ambulance or Transfer Service shall mean any motor vehicle used, designed, redesigned 
or constructed and equipped for the transportation of sick or injured persons, which vehicles for 
the purposes of this ordinance shall be of the classification of basic life support vehicle or higher, 
according to the definitions and standards of the City of Temple, Texas or the Bureau of 
Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health. 
 

(d) Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service means a response made by a transfer 
vehicle or ambulance for the transportation of individuals to or from a medical facility, a nursing 
home or residence under circumstances which do not constitute an emergency. 
 

(e) Emergency is any circumstance that calls for an immediate action and which the element 
of time in transporting the sick, wounded or injured for medical treatment at an emergency room 
or a facility providing emergency medical care is or may be essential to the health or life of any 
person. Such circumstances include, but are not limited to, general accidents, traffic accidents 
and acts of violence resulting in personal injury, and sudden illness. 
 

(f) All other words, terms or phrases shall have the meaning assigned to them by Chapter 5 of 
the City Code, to the extent that such words, terms or phrases have not been assigned other 
meanings by Chapter 773 of the Texas Health and Safety Code; as amended, or the regulations 
of the Bureau of Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health, in which case 
those assigned meanings shall prevail. In the absence of an assigned meaning by the above-
referenced ordinance, statute, or regulations of the Bureau, the meanings of such words, terms 
and phrases shall have the ordinary meanings applied at law generally or by common usage in 
the English language. 
 

Part 3: Notice and Extent of Grant. 
 

The City grants the non-exclusive right and authority to operate and maintain ambulances 
solely for non-emergency ambulance transfer service of persons upon the public streets and 
highways of the City of Temple, Texas, for a term ending on September 30, 2018, to Company 
in consideration of the payment of a franchise fee as provided in Part 5 of this ordinance. 
 

Part 4: Standards and Requirements for Personnel, Vehicles and Equipment. 
 

The Company shall comply with all standards and requirements for personnel, vehicles and 
equipment as enumerated in Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple. 
 

PART 5: Payment to the City Required; Franchise Fee. 
 

(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the 
City of Temple at the Office of the Director of Finance in lawful money of the United States, 
three and one-half (3 ½%) percent of the total amount billed for the transfer service fees and 
other income derived from the operation of the transfer service, which said remittance shall be 
made monthly on or before the tenth day of each calendar month for the preceding calendar 
month. The compensation provided for in this section shall be in lieu of any other fees or charges 



 
 3 

imposed by any other ordinance now or hereafter in force during the life hereof, but shall not 
release the grantee from the payment of ad valorem taxes levied, or to be levied, on property of 
its own. 
 

(b) It shall be the duty of the franchise holder to file with the Director of Finance a sworn 
statement for each calendar quarter showing the total amount billed for the preceding three (3) 
months which statement shall be filed within ten (10) days following the end of the third month. 
The franchise holder herein shall be required to install and adequately keep a system of 
bookkeeping to be approved by the Director of Finance, which books shall be subject to 
inspections of the governing body of the City of Temple and such person or persons as the City 
may designate, or either of them, so as to enable the City of Temple to check the correctness of 
the accounts kept and to compute fairly and accurately the amount billed that may be due to the 
City. 
 

Part 6: Rates. 
 

(a)  The City Council hereby expressly reserves the right, power, and authority to fully 
regulate and fix, by resolution, the rates and charges for the services of the Company to 
its customers, fully reserving to the City Council all the rights, powers, privileges, and 
immunities, subject to the duties, limitations and responsibilities which the Constitution, 
the laws of the State, and the Charter confer upon the City. 

 
(b)  Company may from time to time propose changes in the general rates by filing an 

application with the City Secretary for consideration of the City Council. Within a 
reasonable time consistent with law, the City Council shall afford Company a fair hearing 
with reference to the application and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed 
changes or make such order as may be reasonable. 

 
Part 7: Liability Insurance Required. 

 
No transfer vehicle shall be operated on the public streets of the City, unless the applicant 

provides evidence to the City that he has in full force and effect a public liability insurance 
policy on that transfer vehicle, such insurance policy to be issued by an insurance company 
licensed to do business in the State of Texas. Such insurance policy shall: 
 

(a) provide liability coverage for each vehicle of not less than two hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000) per person, or five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) per occurrence 
for personal injury or death, and one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for property 
damage; 

 
(b) name the City of Temple as an additional insured, and provide a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the City; 

 
(c) not contain a passenger liability exclusion; and 

 



 
 4 

(d) provide for at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation to the City. 
 

Part 8: Conditions of Franchise Granted. 
 

The rights, powers and authority herein granted are granted subject to the Constitution and 
laws of the State of Texas, the Charter of the City of Temple, and where not provided herein, the 
ordinances and codes of the City of Temple as same now exist or may hereafter be amended so 
as to constitute reasonable regulations protecting the health, safety and welfare to insure safe, 
efficient and continuous non-emergency ambulance transfer service, all of which enumerated 
provisions are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof as fully as though the 
same had been copied herein verbatim. 

 
Part 9: Manner of Giving Notice. 

 
Notice to Company may be given by leaving a written copy thereof at the principal office of 

Company during ordinary business hours. Notice to the City may be given by leaving a written 
copy thereof at the Office of the Director of Finance during ordinary business hours. 
 

Part 10: Public Convenience and Necessity. 
 

Company has established by clear, cogent and convincing evidence and the City Council has 
so found and determined that the present and future public convenience and necessity require the 
operations here authorized to be performed by Company and the public convenience and 
necessity will be served by the granting of this franchise. 
 

Part 11: Performance Bond and Revocation Clause. 
 

(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall establish a Ten Thousand Dollar ($10,000) 
performance bond. The purpose of this bond is to recover costs to the City of Temple for 
accepting and administering the applications for a transfer service franchise in the event the 
franchise is revoked. 
 

(b) If the transfer service franchise holder violates any provision or standard of this ordinance 
the franchise will be subject to revocation by the City Council of the City of Temple and 
forfeiture of the performance bond. 
 

Part 12: This franchise shall become effective as provided in Article 10, Section 10.3 of the 
Charter of the City of Temple, if Company shall have filed its written acceptance of the franchise 
within thirty (30) days after the final passage and approval of this ordinance. 
 

Part 13: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 
 



 
 5 

Part 14: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 
or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this 
end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 15: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 15th day of August, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 5th day of September, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Third and Final Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day 
of September, 2013. 

 
             THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
                           
             DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                          
Lacy Borgeson         Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary          City Attorney 



 
 6 

 
 Agreement of Franchisee 
 
 
TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS: 
 
 

The franchisee, Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc., acting by and through its duly 
authorized and empowered officer, hereby accepts the terms and conditions of Ordinance No. 
____________ granting a non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency 
ambulance transfer service upon the public streets and highways of the City of Temple. 
 

SIGNED this          day of __________________, 2013. 
 
 
    ACADIAN AMBULANCE SERVICE, INC. 
 
 

 
            
    By:  



 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 
Item #6  

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1  

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:   
 
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  THIRD AND FINAL READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an 
ordinance authorizing a five year franchise with Scott & White EMS, Inc., to provide non-emergency 
ambulance transfer services within the City.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct a public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description, on third and final reading. 
  
ITEM SUMMARY:  On November 6, 2008, the City Council authorized a five year franchise to Scott & 
White Memorial Hospital and the Scott, Sherwood and Brindley Foundation to provide non-
emergency ambulance transfer services within the City. Those non-emergency services are now 
being operated by Scott & White EMS, Inc. in a joint venture with Scott & White Healthcare and 
Community EMS. Scott & White is one of two current non-emergency ambulance transfer service 
franchisees – the other being Acadian Ambulance Service, Inc. 
 
The current franchise is set to expire on November 7, 2013. Scott & White EMS has submitted the 
necessary paperwork requesting renewal of the franchise. The Staff recommends authorizing a five 
year renewal of the franchise. Five years is the normal franchise term by City ordinance. Franchise 
renewals require three readings, a public hearing, and publication of a summary of the franchise 
ordinance in the Temple Daily Telegram.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: By ordinance, non-emergency ambulance transfer services franchisees pay the 
City 3½ % of the total amount billed per year. In the most recent full reported year (FY 2012), Scott & 
White EMS paid the City $115,682.71 in non-emergency ambulance transfer service franchise fees.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Ordinance 
 
  



 
 1 

 ORDINANCE NO. _____________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, GRANTING TO SCOTT & WHITE EMS, INC., A NON-EXCLUSIVE 
FRANCHISE FOR FIVE YEARS TO OPERATE AND MAINTAIN A NON-
EMERGENCY AMBULANCE TRANSFER SERVICE UPON THE PUBLIC 
STREETS AND HIGHWAYS OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE CONSTITUTION AND LAWS 
OF THE STATE OF TEXAS, THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
AND CHAPTER 5 OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF 
TEMPLE; DECLARING FINDINGS OF FACT; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND 
PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE.  

                           
 

Whereas, Article III, Chapter 5 of the City Code, requires that a person or persons desiring 
to provide non-emergency ambulance transfer services on the streets of the City of Temple 
obtain a franchise, under conditions set out therein; 
 

Whereas,, Scott & White EMS, Inc. has requested a franchise for a non-exclusive, non-
emergency transfer service within the City of Temple; and 
 

Whereas,, Scott & White EMS, Inc. has established to the satisfaction of the City Council by 
clear, cogent and convincing evidence that public convenience and necessity will be served by 
the granting of said franchise. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 

Part 1: A non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance 
transfer service is granted to Scott & White EMS, Inc., pursuant to Chapter 5 of the Code of 
Ordinances of the City of Temple, as amended, and the Charter of the City of Temple, as 
provided herein. 
 

Part 2: Definitions. 
 

As used in this ordinance, the following words and phrases shall have the meaning ascribed 
in this section: 
 

(a) City shall mean the City of Temple, a municipal corporation of the State of Texas, 
situated in Bell County; the words in the City or any similar reference to the territorial limits of 
the City of Temple, Texas, shall mean the area within the corporate limits of the City of Temple, 
Texas, as they now exist or as they may hereafter be lawfully modified or extended. 
  



 
 2 

(b) Company, Transfer Service Franchise Holder, as used herein, unless the context clearly 
indicates otherwise, shall mean Scott & White EMS, Inc., or its legally approved successors and 
assigns. 
 

(c) Ambulance or Transfer Service shall mean any motor vehicle used, designed, redesigned 
or constructed and equipped for the transportation of sick or injured persons, which vehicles for 
the purposes of this ordinance shall be of the classification of basic life support vehicle or higher, 
according to the definitions and standards of the City of Temple, Texas or the Bureau of 
Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health. 
 

(d) Non-Emergency Ambulance Transfer Service means a response made by a transfer 
vehicle or ambulance for the transportation of individuals to or from a medical facility, a nursing 
home or residence under circumstances which do not constitute an emergency. 
 

(e) Emergency is any circumstance that calls for an immediate action and which the element 
of time in transporting the sick, wounded or injured for medical treatment at an emergency room 
or a facility providing emergency medical care is or may be essential to the health or life of any 
person. Such circumstances include, but are not limited to, general accidents, traffic accidents 
and acts of violence resulting in personal injury, and sudden illness. 
 

(f) All other words, terms or phrases shall have the meaning assigned to them by Chapter 5 of 
the City Code, to the extent that such words, terms or phrases have not been assigned other 
meanings by Chapter 773 of the Texas Health and Safety Code; as amended, or the regulations 
of the Bureau of Emergency Management of the Texas Department of Health, in which case 
those assigned meanings shall prevail. In the absence of an assigned meaning by the above-
referenced ordinance, statute, or regulations of the Bureau, the meanings of such words, terms 
and phrases shall have the ordinary meanings applied at law generally or by common usage in 
the English language. 
 

Part 3: Notice and Extent of Grant. 
 

The City grants the non-exclusive right and authority to operate and maintain ambulances 
solely for non-emergency ambulance transfer service of persons upon the public streets and 
highways of the City of Temple, Texas, for a term ending on September 30, 2018, to Company 
in consideration of the payment of a franchise fee as provided in Part 5 of this ordinance. 
 

Part 4: Standards and Requirements for Personnel, Vehicles and Equipment. 
 

The Company shall comply with all standards and requirements for personnel, vehicles and 
equipment as enumerated in Chapter 5 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Temple. 
 

Part 5: Payment to the City Required; Franchise Fee. 
 



 
 3 

(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall, during the life of said franchise, pay to the 
City of Temple at the Office of the Director of Finance in lawful money of the United States, 
three and one-half (3 ½%) percent of the total amount billed for the transfer service fees and 
other income derived from the operation of the transfer service, which said remittance shall be 
made monthly on or before the tenth day of each calendar month for the preceding calendar 
month. The compensation provided for in this section shall be in lieu of any other fees or charges 
imposed by any other ordinance now or hereafter in force during the life hereof, but shall not 
release the grantee from the payment of ad valorem taxes levied, or to be levied, on property of 
its own. 
 

(b) It shall be the duty of the franchise holder to file with the Director of Finance a sworn 
statement for each calendar quarter showing the total amount billed for the preceding three (3) 
months which statement shall be filed within ten (10) days following the end of the third month. 
The franchise holder herein shall be required to install and adequately keep a system of 
bookkeeping to be approved by the Director of Finance, which books shall be subject to 
inspections of the governing body of the City of Temple and such person or persons as the City 
may designate, or either of them, so as to enable the City of Temple to check the correctness of 
the accounts kept and to compute fairly and accurately the amount billed that may be due to the 
City. 
 

Part 6: Rates. 
 

(a)  The City Council hereby expressly reserves the right, power, and authority to fully 
regulate and fix, by resolution, the rates and charges for the services of the Company to 
its customers, fully reserving to the City Council all the rights, powers, privileges, and 
immunities, subject to the duties, limitations and responsibilities which the Constitution, 
the laws of the State, and the Charter confer upon the City. 

 
(b)  Company may from time to time propose changes in the general rates by filing an 

application with the City Secretary for consideration of the City Council. Within a 
reasonable time consistent with law, the City Council shall afford Company a fair hearing 
with reference to the application and shall either approve or disapprove the proposed 
changes or make such order as may be reasonable. 

 
Part 7: Liability Insurance Required. 

 
No transfer vehicle shall be operated on the public streets of the City, unless the applicant 

provides evidence to the City that he has in full force and effect a public liability insurance 
policy on that transfer vehicle, such insurance policy to be issued by an insurance company 
licensed to do business in the State of Texas. Such insurance policy shall: 
 

(a) provide liability coverage for each vehicle of not less than two hundred and fifty thousand 
dollars ($250,000) per person, or five hundred thousand dollars ($500,000) per occurrence 
for personal injury or death, and one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) for property 
damage; 



 
 4 

 
(b) name the City of Temple as an additional insured, and provide a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the City; 

 
(c) not contain a passenger liability exclusion; and 

 
(d) provide for at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation to the City. 

 
Part 8: Conditions of Franchise Granted. 

 
The rights, powers and authority herein granted are granted subject to the Constitution and 

laws of the State of Texas, the Charter of the City of Temple, and where not provided herein, the 
ordinances and codes of the City of Temple as same now exist or may hereafter be amended so 
as to constitute reasonable regulations protecting the health, safety and welfare to insure safe, 
efficient and continuous non-emergency ambulance transfer service, all of which enumerated 
provisions are incorporated herein by reference and made a part hereof as fully as though the 
same had been copied herein verbatim. 
 

Part 9: Manner of Giving Notice. 
 

Notice to Company may be given by leaving a written copy thereof at the principal office of 
Company during ordinary business hours. Notice to the City may be given by leaving a written 
copy thereof at the Office of the Director of Finance during ordinary business hours. 
 

Part 10: Public Convenience and Necessity. 
 

Company has established by clear, cogent and convincing evidence and the City Council has 
so found and determined that the present and future public convenience and necessity require the 
operations here authorized to be performed by Company and the public convenience and 
necessity will be served by the granting of this franchise. 
 

Part 11: Performance Bond and Revocation Clause. 
 

(a) The transfer service franchise holder shall establish a Ten Thousand Dollar ($10,000) 
performance bond. The purpose of this bond is to recover costs to the City of Temple for 
accepting and administering the applications for a transfer service franchise in the event the 
franchise is revoked. 
 

(b) If the transfer service franchise holder violates any provision or standard of this ordinance 
the franchise will be subject to revocation by the City Council of the City of Temple and 
forfeiture of the performance bond. 
 

Part 12: This franchise shall become effective as provided in Article 10, Section 10.3 of the 
Charter of the City of Temple, if Company shall have filed its written acceptance of the franchise 
within thirty (30) days after the final passage and approval of this ordinance. 
 



 
 5 

Part 13: The declarations, determinations and findings declared, made and found in the 
preamble of this ordinance are hereby adopted, restated and made a part of the operative 
provisions hereof. 

 
Part 14: If any provision of this ordinance or the application of any provision to any person 

or circumstance is held invalid, the invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of 
the ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this 
end the provisions of this ordinance are declared to be severable. 
 

Part 15: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance 
is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose 
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading on the 15th day of August, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 5th day of September, 2013. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on Third and Final Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day 
of September, 2013. 

 
             THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
                           
             DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:           APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
                          
Lacy Borgeson         Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary          City Attorney 



 
 6 

 
 Agreement of Franchisee 
 
 
TO THE HONORABLE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS: 
 
 

The franchisee, Scott & White EMS, Inc., acting by and through its duly authorized and 
empowered officer, hereby accepts the terms and conditions of Ordinance No. ____________ 
granting a non-exclusive franchise to operate and maintain a non-emergency ambulance transfer 
service upon the public streets and highways of the City of Temple. 
 

SIGNED this          day of __________________, 2013. 
 
 
    SCOTT & WHITE EMS, INC. 
 
 

 
            
    By:  



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
 

09/19/13 
Item #7 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 1 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Denny Hainley, Benefits Specialist/Acting Director of Civil Service 
 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING: Consider adopting an ordinance 
establishing certification pay in the amount of $150 per month for the certification of Master Peace 
officer in the Police Department. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for October 3, 2013. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the Council establish 
certification pay by ordinance.  Management desires to add a certification pay of $150 per month for 
the certification of Master Peace Officer in the Police Department. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $38,000 is included in the FY 2014 budget for the Master 
Peace Officer certification pay. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   
Ordinance  

 
 
 
 

 
  



 

 
ORDINANCE NO.      

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
ESTABLISHING CERTIFICATION PAY FOR THE MASTER PEACE OFFICER 
AT THE TEMPLE POLICE DEPARTMENT, IN THE AMOUNT OF $150 PER 
MONTH; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 

 
  

Whereas, Chapter 143 of the Local Government Code requires that the City Council establish 
certification pay by ordinance;  
 
 Whereas, staff desires to add a certification pay of $150 per month for the certification of 
Master Peace Officer in the Police Department; 
 
 Whereas, funding for the Master Peace Officer certification pay is included in the FY 2013-
2014 budget; and 
 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered these matters and deems it in the public interest to 
authorize these actions. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 
THAT: 
 
 Part 1: Pursuant to Section 143.044 of the Local Government Code, the City Council 
authorizes the payment of $150 per month for police officers receiving the certification of Master 
Peace Officer from the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education. 
 

Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this ordinance is 
passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of 
said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
September, 2013. 
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 3rd day of October, 2013. 
 

 
  THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 

 
              
       DANIEL A. DUNN, MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
  

         
COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 

 
09/19/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 5 

 
 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
 
Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner  
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  FIRST READING – PUBLIC HEARING - Z-FY-13-30:  Consider adopting an 
Ordinance authorizing a zone change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 
21.59 ± acres, part of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located on the 
west side of Old Waco Road and the east side of South Pea Ridge Road, east of Westwood Estates. 
 
 
P&Z COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION At its meeting on August 19, 2013, the Planning and 
Zoning Commission voted 7/1 to recommend approval of a zone change from Agricultural District 
(AG) to General Retail District (GR).  Commissioner Magaña voted in opposition. 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Conduct public hearing and adopt ordinance as presented in item 
description on first reading, and schedule a second reading and final adoption for October 3, 2013. 
 
Staff recommends denial of the requested zone change to GR District for the following reasons:  

1. The west half of the property does not comply with the Future Land Use and Character 
Map; 

2. The request does not offer sufficient buffering between residential uses and retail uses 
3.  Although the arterial classification of Old Waco Road complies with the Thoroughfare Plan, 

Old Waco Road is not built to arterial standards and requires right-of-way dedication and 
widening;  

4. Existing street facilities are insufficient to support the requested 21 acres of General Retail 
development; and 

5. Water and wastewater facilities are available to the subject property. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY:  The applicant requests a zone change from Agricultural District (AG) to General 
Retail District (GR).  
 
According to the City of Temple Comprehensive Plan, the property’s Suburban Residential land 
use classification on the west half of the applicant’s property should be characterized by mid-
size single family lots, allowing for greater separation between dwellings and more emphasis on 
green space versus streets and driveways.  The applicant’s requested GR District does not 
comply with the property’s Suburban Residential land use classification. 
 



09/19/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 5 

 
The property’s Suburban Commercial land use classification on the east half of the applicant’s 
property is appropriate for office, retail and services uses adjacent to and abutting residential 
neighborhoods and in other areas where the community’s image and aesthetic value is to be 
promoted, such as at “gateways” and high-profile corridor locations.  Therefore, it limits the floor area 
ratio and requires a higher landscape surface ratio than in the Auto Urban Commercial district.  To 
maintain the suburban character and achieve higher quality development, design standards 
should be integrated into the zoning ordinance, perhaps with a Planned Development.  
 
The requested GR zoning district is the standard retail district and allows most retail uses including 
retail sales, restaurants, grocery stores, department stores, or offices and residential uses except 
apartments. 
 
The GR zoning district is intended to serve larger service areas than neighborhoods. This district 
should be located at the intersection of major arterials and should provide total on-site traffic 
maneuvering such that traffic entering and exiting the facility should have room to turn, stack and park 
within the confines of the retail facility.  Adjoining zoning districts should be carefully selected to 
reduce environmental conflicts.  Adjoining uses are undeveloped land, agricultural uses, and rural 
residential uses. 
 
A rezoning from the AG to the GR zoning district would allow many uses by right, including residential 
uses that would not have been allowed before.  Those uses include, but are not limited to, the 
following: 

Residential uses    Nonresidential uses 
Single Family Attached   Office 
Duplex      Restaurant 
Home for the Aged    Hotel or Motel 

 Townhouse     Food or Beverage sales store without fuel sales 
 
Prohibited uses include HUD-Code manufactured homes and land lease communities, boat sales or 
storage, welding or machine shop, storage warehouse, and building material sales, among others. 
 
 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: The following aerial shows the subject property and 
surrounding properties, as well as zoning and recommendations from the Future Land Use and 
Character Map.  A table showing the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses is 
included in the attached surrounding uses table. 



 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed rezoning relates to the following goals, 
objectives or maps of the Comprehensive Plan and Sidewalk and Trails Plan: 
 
Docu
ment Policy, Goal, Objective or Map 

Site Conditions Compliance 

CP Map 3.1 - Future Land Use and 
Character (FLUP) 

The east half of the subject property 
along Old Waco Road is identified as 
Suburban Commercial.  The 
applicant’s requested GR District is in 
compliance.   
However, the west half of the property 
is identified as Suburban Residential. 
The applicant’s requested GR 
District does not comply with this 
recommendation.  If approved, a zone 
change to the GR District would require 
an amendment to the Future Land Use 
and Character Plan. 

The request for 
the west half of 

the property 
does not 

comply with the 
recommended 

Suburban 
Residential, but 
the east half of 

the property 
complies with 

the 
recommended 

Suburban 
Commercial. 

CP Map 5.2 - Thoroughfare Plan  
The property fronts Old Waco Road, 
which is identified as a proposed major 
arterial.  The requested GR district is 

Arterials and 
collectors are 

appropriate, but 



appropriate along major arterials. The 
applicant will be required to 
dedicate right-of-way along Old 
Waco Road through the platting 
process, per UDC Section 8.2.1 
Streets. 
The southwest corner of the applicant’s 
property fronts South Pea Ridge Road, 
which is classified as a collector.  GR 
districts are appropriate along 
collectors. 

Old Waco 
Road requires 
right-of-way 

dedication and 
widening to 

arterial 
standards. 

CP 

Goal 4.1 - Growth and 
development patterns should be 
consistent with the City’s 
infrastructure and public service 
capacities 

An 18-inch water line runs along the 
west side of the property.  A 14-inch 
water line runs along the north property 
line.  A 24-inch water line runs along 
the east property line along Old Waco 
Road. 
An 8-inch and 12-inch sewer line exists 
to the east of the property, along the 
east right-of-way of Old Waco Road.  

Yes 

STP Temple Trails Master Plan Map 
& sidewalks 

The Temple Trails Master Plan reflects 
a proposed 10’ Citywide Spine Trail 
along the east edge of the subject 
property along Old Waco Road.   
Per UDC section 8.2.3, sidewalks are 
required on both sides of arterials and 
one side of collector streets. Sidewalks 
are required to be installed at the time 
of development and will be noted on 
the plat. The combined sidewalk and 
trail will be constructed as part of the 
overall Old Waco Road improvement 
project. 

A 10’ wide 
sidewalk is 

required, but 
will be 

addressed 
during platting 

process. 

 CP = Comprehensive Plan      STP = Sidewalk and Trails Plan 
DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS:  Dimensional standards for nonresidential development in the 
GR District are as follows: 

 Minimum lot size – N/A 
 Minimum Lot Width – N/A 
 Minimum Lot Depth – N/A 
 Front Yard Setback – 15 feet 
 Side Yard Setback  – 10 feet 
 Rear Yard Setback –  0 feet (10 feet adjacent to residential zoning) 

 
Dimensional standards for residential development in the GR District are as follows: 

 Minimum lot size – 5,000 Sq. Ft. 
 Minimum Lot Width – 50 feet 
 Minimum Lot Depth – 100 feet 
 Front Yard Setback – 15 feet 
 Side Yard Setback – 10% of lot width with 5-feet min.  
 Side Yard Setback (corner)  – 15 feet 
 Rear Yard Setback – 10 feet  



09/19/13 
Item #8 

Regular Agenda 
Page 5 of 5 

 
 
PUBLIC NOTICE: Seven notices of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing were sent 
out to property owners within 200-feet of the subject property as required by State law and City 
Ordinance.  As of September 9, 2013, one notice was returned in favor of the request and one notice 
was returned in opposition.   
 
The newspaper printed notice of the Planning and Zoning Commission public hearing on August 7, 
2013, in accordance with state law and local ordinance.  
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  Not Applicable 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  
Zoning and Location Map 
Future Land Use and Character Map 
Surrounding Uses Table 
Notification Map 
Response letters 
PZ Excerpts 
Ordinance 

 
  

         
 

  
         

 
  



 

 

 

 

 (

(1

4

5

6

7

7 7

6

4

5

5410-A

2542-B

2542-A

1719

1733

1807

1810

19
09

20
15

18
67

19
30

17
20

19
55

AG

SF-3
SF-3 O-2

SF-1

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

Z-FY-13-30 AG to GR Old Waco Road

GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
0 100 200

Feet

Case Parcel
Subdivisions
Zoning

Expressway
Major Arterial
Proposed Major Arterial

Proposed K-TUTS
Minor Arterial
Proposed Minor Arterial

Collector
Conceptual Collector

7/25/2013
City of Temple GIS



Z-FY-13-30 OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

GUNBARREL DR

µ

Z-FY-13-30 AG to GR Old Waco Road

GIS products are for informational purposes 
and may not have been prepared for or 
be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying 
purposes.They do not represent an 
on-the-ground survey and represent only 
the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

Future Land Use
Neighborhood Conservation
Estate Residential
Suburban Residential

Auto-Urban Residential
Auto-Urban Multi-Family
Auto-Urban Mixed Use

Auto-Urban Commercial
Suburban Commercial
Urban Center

Temple Medical Education District
Industrial
Business Park

Public Institutional
Parks & Open Space
Agricultural/Rural

0 100 20050
Feet

8/9/2013
City of Temple GIS



1611

1627

1719

1733

1807

1810

7619
7627

19
09

20
15

18
67

20
44

19
30

17
20

19
55AG

SF-3SF-3 O-2

SF-1

¬«1

3

4

5

6

7

9

7 7

6

3

4

5

101213

2813-I

2544-A

5410-A

2543-A

2543-B

2542-A

OL
D 

WA
CO

 R
D

S P
EA

 RI
DG

E R
D

Z-FY-13-30 AG to GR Old Waco Road

¬«1
GIS products are for informational purposes and 
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for 
legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  They 
do not represent an on-the-ground survey and 
represent only the approximate relative location 
of property boundaries and other features.

µ
1234

1234-A

1

Case
200' Buffer

Zoning
Subdivision

Outblock Number
Address

Block Number
Lot Number

0 200 400
Feet

7/25/2013
City of Temple GIS
tlyerly

tlyerly
Text Box
A

tlyerly
Typewritten Text

tlyerly
Text Box
D







 
SURROUNDING PROPERTY AND USES: 
The following table shows the subject property, existing zoning and current land uses: 
 

Direction Zoning 
Current Land  

Use Comp Plan                                 Photo 

Subject 
Property AG Undeveloped 

Land 

Suburban 
Residential  
and 
Suburban 
Commercial 

 

 

East AG  
Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

Suburban 
Commercial 

 



Direction Zoning 
Current Land  

Use Comp Plan                                 Photo 

West AG and 
SF-3 

Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

Suburban 
Residential 

 

South AG 
Agricultural 
Land/ Rural 
Residential 

Suburban 
Commercial 

 

Suburban 
Residential 

 

North 
SF3 
and  
O-2 

Undeveloped 
Land 

Suburban 
Residential 

 and  
Suburban 

Commercial 

 
 



EXCERPTS FROM THE 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MEETING 

MONDAY, AUGUST 19, 2013 
 
ACTION ITEMS 

Item 2: Z-FY-13-30:  Hold a public hearing to discuss and recommend action on a zone 
change from Agricultural District (AG) to General Retail District (GR) on 21.59 ± acres 
part of the Nancy Chance Survey, Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located on the 
west side of Old Waco Road and the east side of South Pea Ridge Road, east of 
Westwood Estates. (Applicant: John Martin for Jack P. Hilliard, Jr.) 

Ms. Tammy Lyerly, Senior Planner, stated this item would go to City Council for first reading on 
September 19, 2013 and second reading on October 3, 2013. 

The subject property is surrounded by existing and future residential uses as well as future 
office uses to the north. The Future Land Use and Character Map designate a split 
recommendation for the property. Old Waco Road is on the east side of the property and S. 
Pea Ridge Road is located on the west side.  

Surrounding properties include undeveloped land (future single family residential and office 
uses) to the north, and rural residential and agricultural uses to the east, south and west. 

The General Retail (GR) allowed and prohibited uses are given. 

Development and dimensional standards are given for the GR district. 

The Future Land Use and Character Map splits the designate of the area as Suburban-
Residential (yellow) and Suburban-Commercial (pink). The applicant’s request is for GR district 
does not comply with the Suburban-Residential portion but does comply with the Suburban-
Commercial section. 

The Thoroughfare Plan designates Old Waco Road as a proposed major arterial and S. Pea 
Ridge Road as a collector. The applicant would be required to dedicate right-of-way along Old 
Waco Road during the platting process.  

Per the Unified Development Code, Section 8.2.3, Sidewalks, a collector requires a four-foot 
sidewalk along one side of the road and an arterial requires a six-foot wide sidewalk along both 
sides. There is a citywide spine trail on the Trails Master Plan for this property and a spine trail 
requires a 10 foot wide sidewalk. For the six-foot wide sidewalk required along the arterial, the 
City has an oversized participation agreement to upgrade the minimum six-foot wide sidewalk 
up to the 10 foot wide sidewalk required for a spine trail. The City will help with the cost of the 
additional four feet. 

The existing water lines in the area include a 14-inch to the north of the property and a four-
inch line and 24-inch line along Old Waco Road. An 18-inch water line is also located along S. 
Pea Ridge Road. There is an eight-inch sewer line on the opposite side of Old Waco Road. 
Water and sewer are available to serve the property. 



Seven notices were mailed out with one received in favor and one in opposition. 

Staff recommendation is for denial of the requested zone change because: 

 The request only partially complies with the Future Land Use and Character Map; 

 The request partially complies with the Thoroughfare Plan; and 

 Public facilities are available to the subject property. 

Staff would like to work with the applicant in a proposal for partial residential and partial 
general retail with enhanced buffering for the adjacent residential uses. 

Chair Sears opened the public hearing. 

Mr. Thomas Baird, 15 N. Main Street, Temple, Texas, appeared on behalf of the applicant, 
Jack Hilliard, and stated the applicant would like to keep his options open. The property would 
not make a good residential site due to the transmission power lines that goes from north to 
south cutting the property in half, and the water tower make it not conducive to residential. A 
better mix would be general retail and office and this zoning would allow more flexibility 
necessary to maximize the property and development. Mr. Baird asked the Commissioners to 
support this request. 

Commissioner Rhoads asked if the applicant had any idea what he wanted to do with the 
property and Mr. Baird stated not really, he would like to keep his options open for future 
development. 

Mr. Baird stated he was glad to see the spine trail. 

Mr. John Martin, 2813 Sleepy Hollow, Temple, Texas, stated he represented Mr. Hilliard and 
agreed with Mr. Baird’s comments. With the tower in back of the property and the lines above, 
the property would be better zoned as general retail rather than residential. 

Commissioner Staats asked what the easement width of the transmission line was. Mr. Martin 
did not know but stated this one is a major line. Normally the easement is 100 feet. 

Chair Sears closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Talley asked about the staff working with the applicant and if the applicant was 
open to doing that. Ms. Lyerly stated they have not had a lot of discussions other than 
informing the applicant of Staff’s recommendation; but when she spoke with Mr. Martin he 
wanted to market the property for general retail. The various options have not been discussed. 

Commissioner Staats made a motion to approve Item 2, Z-FY-13-30, and Commissioner 
Martin made a second. 

Motion passed: (7:1) 
Commissioners Magaña voted nay 



1 
 

  
ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

 
[PLANNING NO. Z-FY-13-30] 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A REZONING FROM AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT 
(AG) TO GENERAL RETAIL DISTRICT (GR) ON APPROXIMATELY 21.59 
ACRES OUT OF THE NANCY CHANCE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 5, 
LOCATED ON THE WEST SIDE OF OLD WACO ROAD AND THE EAST 
SIDE OF SOUTH PEA RIDGE ROAD, EAST OF WESTWOOD ESTATES; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS CLAUSE. 
 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS, 

THAT: 
 
Part 1: The City Council approves a rezoning from Agricultural District (AG) to 

General Retail District (GR) on approximately 21.59 acres out of the Nancy Chance Survey, 
Abstract No. 5, Bell County, Texas, located on the west side of Old Waco Road and the east 
side of South Pea Ridge Road, east of Westwood Estates, more fully described in Exhibit A, 
attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes. 

 
Part 2: The City Council directs the Director of Planning to make the necessary 

changes to the City Zoning Map accordingly. 
 

Part 3: It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council that the sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses, and phrases of this ordinance are severable and, if any 
phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this ordinance should be declared invalid 
by the final judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity shall 
not affect any of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without the 
incorporation in this ordinance of any such phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section. 
 

Part 4: This ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage in 
accordance with the provisions of the Charter of the City of Temple, Texas, and it is 
accordingly so ordained. 
 

Part 5: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED on First Reading and Public Hearing on the 19th day of 
September, 2013. 
 

  



2 
 

 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED on Second Reading on the 3rd day of October, 2013. 
 

THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
 
        ___________________________ 

DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
                       
Lacy Borgeson      Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 



 
 
 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM MEMORANDUM 
  

 
09/19/13 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 1 of 2 

 
DEPT./DIVISION SUBMISSION & REVIEW:  
Jonathan Graham, City Attorney 
David Blackburn, City Manager 
 
ITEM DESCRIPTION: Consider adopting a resolution authorizing a letter of intent between the City of 
Temple, Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc., and Criterion Management Group, LLC, for 
redevelopment of the Hawn and Arcadia Theatre properties located at 114 and 110 East Central 
Avenue. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Adopt resolution as presented in item description. 
 
 
ITEM SUMMARY: Staff has been working for several months to negotiate a Letter of Intent (LOI) with 
a developer, Criterion Management Group, LLC., for the Hawn Hotel and Arcadia Theatre 
properties. Criterion’s proposal is to renovate the Hawn and Arcadia properties as a combination 
residential (condos), retail and possible performing arts space. 
 
Bryan Smith, the principal shareholder of the Criterion group, grew up in Temple, and has been 
involved in development in Texas for several decades prior to this project (e.g., construction project 
manager for the Domain project in Austin). He is currently working in Montreal, Canada on project to 
decommission a refinery. 
 
This LOI is non-binding and indicates the parties’ intent to proceed with, and negotiate in good faith, a 
future development agreement for redevelopment of the Hawn Hotel and Arcadia Theatre properties 
by Criterion. The LOI is essentially a grant by the City to the Criterion Group of an exclusive 
right to negotiate for a period of up to eight (8) months. During that period, Criterion will conduct 
its due diligence, secure financing, and finalize the design for the renovations. At the end of the due 
diligence period, if Criterion elects to proceed, the City, Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc., and 
Criterion, will execute a binding development agreement with the terms outlined below firmed up. In 
late July, the board of directors for the nonprofit corporation that owns the Arcadia Theatre (I serve on 
that board) met and voted to authorize the Arcadia Theatre property to be subject to the letter of 
intent as well. 
 
 A briefing will be provided to the City Council at the workshop scheduled for September 19th. 
 
The proposed LOI includes the following concepts:  
 



09/19/13 
Item #9 

Regular Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 
1) Redevelopment of the “Hawn” property improvements by the Criterion Group to include: 

 
• City/Arcadia conveys Hawn and Arcadia buildings to Criterion for $1 
• Criterion to be developer & owner;  
• Upper floors of the Hawn Hotel main building to be ‘for sale’ urban condominium units; 
• First floor of the Hawn Hotel main building and adjacent 2 story attached building developed 

as retail space, support services and a restaurant; 
• Reversionary clause if construction is not initiated within two years; 
• Commitment by the City to make the existing City-owned parking lot (approximately 80 

spaces) north of the Hawn (4th Street) and Arcadia properties available for exclusive use of 
residents of the condominium units; 

• Actual form of parking in that lot to be determined (at a minimum secured/fenced, and possibly 
covered) with ingress & egress to and through the Arcadia Theatre property; 

• Evaluation of use of the Arcadia Theatre improvements as a performing arts venue (live or 
recorded) and as common areas; 

• If performing arts venue isn’t economically feasible, the Arcadia Theater improvements  
(theater and arcade area off of Central) will be used for more retail/restaurant space and 
common areas for the overall project; 

• City to improve intersection of Central and 4th Street similar to other renovated intersection in 
and around City Hall (stamped or paved corners, ADA compliant ramps, and streetscape); 

• City to evaluate condition of water and wastewater infrastructure for project, and update if 
needed; 

• Other City incentives to include:  tax abatement (10 year, declining percentage) on the 
increased value of real and personal property with a useful life of ten years or more;  

• Waiver of permits and fees; application assistance for historic or new market tax credits; 
 Criterion agrees to maintain the historical integrity and appearance of the exteriors of the Hawn 

and Arcadia main buildings/façades. 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  None at this time. If after the 8 month due diligence period, Criterion elects to 
move forward on the project, the City is agreeing that it will convey the Hawn property to Criterion for 
$1 (the board of directors for the Arcadia have made a similar commitment). The City is also 
committing to a ten year declining percentage tax abatement on the increased value of real and 
personal property with a useful life of at least ten years. The specific value for that tax abatement is 
unknown at this time, but the current tax value of the Hawn and Arcadia properties on BCAD’s tax 
rolls is very low. The cost of waiving permit fees is also unknown at this time, as is the cost if any of 
any renovations to the City’s water and wastewater infrastructure to address the needs of the 
proposed project. Those collective costs would be estimated at the time Criterion completes its due 
diligence and advises the City that it is prepared to enter into a development agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution 

 
 



RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A LETTER OF INTENT BETWEEN THE 
CITY OF TEMPLE, TEMPLE HISTORIC ARCADIA THEATRE, INC. AND 
CRITERION MANAGEMENT GROUP, LLC FOR REDEVELOPMENT OF THE 
HAWN AND ARCADIA THEATRE PROPERTIES LOCATED AT 114 AND 110 
EAST CENTRAL AVENUE; AND PROVIDING AN OPEN MEETINGS 
CLAUSE. 

              
 
Whereas, Staff has been working for several months to negotiate a Letter of Intent (LOI) 

with the developer, Criterion Management Group, LLC, for the Hawn Hotel and Arcadia Theatre 
properties – Criterion’s proposal is to renovate the Hawn and Arcadia properties as a 
combination residential (condos), retail, and possible performing arts space;  

 
Whereas, the LOI is non-binding and indicates the parties’ intent to proceed with, and 

negotiate in good faith, a future development agreement for redevelopment of the Hawn Hotel 
and Arcadia Theatre properties by Criterion and would provide the Criterion Group an exclusive 
right to negotiate for a period of up to eight (8) months; 

   
Whereas, during this period, Criterion will conduct its due diligence, secure financing, 

and finalize the design for the renovations – at the end of the period, if Criterion elects to 
proceed, the City, Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc., and Criterion will execute a binding 
development agreement with terms to be mutually agreed upon at that time – the board of 
directors for Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc. have met and voted to authorize the LOI; and 

 
 Whereas, the City Council has considered the matter and deems it in the public interest 
to authorize this action. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TEMPLE, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

 
 Part 1:  The City Council authorizes the City Manager, or his designee, to execute a 
letter of intent, after approval as to form by the City Attorney, between the City of Temple, 
Temple Historic Arcadia Theatre, Inc., and Criterion management Group, LLC for 
redevelopment of the Hawn and Arcadia Theatre properties located at 114 and 110 East Central 
Avenue which will include the following concepts: 

 
• City/Arcadia conveys Hawn and Arcadia buildings to Criterion for $1 
• Criterion to be developer & owner;  
• Upper floors of the Hawn Hotel main building to be ‘for sale’ urban condominium units; 
• First floor of the Hawn Hotel main building and adjacent 2 story attached building 

developed as retail space, support services and a restaurant; 
• Reversionary clause if construction is not initiated within two years; 
• Commitment by the City to make the existing City-owned parking lot (approximately 80 

spaces) north of the Hawn (4th Street) and Arcadia properties available for exclusive use 
of residents of the condominium units; 

• Actual form of parking in that lot to be determined (at a minimum secured/fenced, and 
possibly covered) with ingress & egress to and through the Arcadia Theatre property; 

• Evaluation of use of the Arcadia Theatre improvements as a performing arts venue (live 
or recorded) and as common areas; 

• If performing arts venue isn’t economically feasible, the Arcadia Theater improvements  
(theater and arcade area off of Central) will be used for more retail/restaurant space and 



common areas for the overall project; 
• City to improve intersection of Central and 4th Street similar to other renovated 

intersection in and around City Hall (stamped or paved corners, ADA compliant ramps, 
and streetscape); 

• City to evaluate condition of water and wastewater infrastructure for project, and update 
if needed; 

• Other City incentives to include:  tax abatement (10 year, declining percentage) on the 
increased value of real and personal property with a useful life of ten years or more;  

• Waiver of permits and fees; application assistance for historic or new market tax credits; 
 Criterion agrees to maintain the historical integrity and appearance of the exteriors of the 

Hawn and Arcadia main buildings/façades. 
 

 Part 2: It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place, 
and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act. 

 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this the 19th day of September, 2013. 

 
       THE CITY OF TEMPLE, TEXAS 
 
              

    DANIEL A. DUNN, Mayor 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
              
Lacy Borgeson     Jonathan Graham 
City Secretary      City Attorney 


	Letter of Recommendation Bid #61-01-13.pdf
	1216 BID Tabulation.pdf
	Bid Tabulation Sheet


	Z-FY-13-26 Tower CUP_CC Attachments 5Sept2013.pdf
	Scott  White FAA DNE Letter pdf.pdf
	DNE_Letter
	Frequency Data

	5July2013_SCOTT AND WHITE-070113-NB-IFC pdf.pdf
	Scott and White-T1
	Scott and White-P1
	Survey Scott & White
	Scott and White-A1
	Scott and White-A2
	Scott and White-A3
	Scott and White-A4
	Scott and White-A5
	Scott and White-D1
	Scott and White-D2
	Scott and White-D3
	Scott and White-D4
	Scott and White-D5
	Scott and White-S1
	Scott and White-S2
	Scott and White-S3
	Scott and White-S4
	Scott and White-G1
	Scott and White-G2
	Scott and White-G3
	Scott and White-G4
	Scott and White-G5
	Scott and White-BASE DRAWING-E1 - SITE PLAN
	Scott and White-BASE DRAWING-E2 - DETAIL SITE PLAN
	Scott and White-BASE DRAWING-E3 - ELECTRICAL RISER
	Scott and White-BASE DRAWING-E4 - ELECTRICAL SPECIFICATIONS





